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EXPLANATORY NOTE

Core Scientific, Inc. (the “Company”) is amending its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2025, as originally filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on August 8, 2025 (hereinafter referred to as the “Original Filing” and, as amended, the “Amendment”), and is separately amending its
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024 and its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarterly periods ended March 31, 2025 and September
30, 2025 (such amended reports, together with this Amendment, the “Amended Reports™), in each case to correct identified errors in its previously issued consolidated financial
statements as further described below as well as in Note 3 — Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements, in Part I. Item 1 — Financial Statements, to the restated
condensed consolidated financial statements included in this Amendment.

During the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2025, the Company determined that property, plant and equipment was
overstated as a result of the improper continued capitalization of carrying values of assets committed to demolition in connection with the conversion of certain facilities from
digital asset mining operations to high-performance computing colocation infrastructure, which impacted the Company’s previously issued consolidated financial statements as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2024, as well as the condensed consolidated financial statements as of and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2024, the three months ended March 31, 2025, the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, and the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2025 (the “Non-Reliance Periods™). Specifically, the carrying values of assets committed to demolition were improperly capitalized rather than being written
down to fair value through the recognition of impairment charges in the periods in which the commitment to demolish was made.

The Company assessed the materiality of the errors, individually and in the aggregate, and concluded that the errors were material to the previously issued financial
statements and such previously issued financial statements should no longer be relied upon. As a result, the Company is restating its previously issued consolidated financial
statements for the Non-Reliance Periods.

As all material restatement information will be included in this Amendment and in the Amended Reports, the Company does not intend to amend any of the Company’s
previously filed Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarterly periods ended June 30, 2024 and September 30, 2024. Accordingly, investors and others should rely only on
the financial information and other disclosures regarding the Non-Reliance Periods in the Amended Reports and in any future filings with the SEC (as applicable) and should
not rely on any previously issued or filed reports, earnings releases and investor presentations and other communications describing the Company’s previously issued financial
statements, financial results, and other related financial information related to the Non-Reliance Periods.

The cumulative impact of the corrections on the condensed consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2025 resulted in an overstatement of property, plant and equipment,
net of approximately $127.3 million and a corresponding understatement of accumulated deficit of the same amount. The impact on the condensed consolidated statements of
operations for the six months ended June 30, 2025 was an understatement of selling, general and administrative expense of approximately $4.4 million. The restatement had no
impact on total net cash flows; however, the correction resulted in a reclassification from capital expenditures within investing activities to operating activities. The restatement
had no impact on revenue, cost of revenue, or income tax expense. There was no income tax effect as the Company maintains a full valuation allowance against its net deferred
tax assets.

As a result of the errors described above, the Company has identified a material weakness in its internal control over financial reporting, as described in more detail in
Part I. Item 4 — Controls and Procedures. The Company’s management reevaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and disclosure
controls and procedures and concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of the
respective end dates of each of the Company’s fiscal years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2025, and the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were not
effective as of the respective end dates of each of its interim Non-Reliance Periods within 2025. A discussion of the Company’s plans to remediate this material weakness are
set forth in Part I. Item 4 — Controls and Procedures.

This Amendment amends and restates in their entirety the following items of the Original Filing:
e Item I — Financial Statements;
* Item 2 — Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations;

e Item 4 — Controls and Procedures;
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e Item 1A — Risk Factors; and
e Item 6 — Exhibits

In addition, in accordance with Rule 12b-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, new certifications of the Company's principal executive officer and
principal financial officer are filed as exhibits to this Amendment.

Except as described above, this Amendment does not amend, update or change any other items or disclosure contained in the Original Filing. This Amendment does not
reflect events, results or developments occurring after the date of the Original Filing or modify or update the disclosures therein in any way, other than as required to reflect the
effects of the restatement. Accordingly, forward-looking statements included in this Amendment represent management’s views as of the date of the Original Filing and should
not be assumed to be accurate as of any date thereafter. This Amendment should be read in conjunction with the Original Filing and the Company's filings with the SEC
subsequent to the Original Filing.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Amendment, including, without limitation, statements under Part I. Item 2. — “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations,” includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, (the “Securities Act”) and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the “Exchange Act”). Forward-looking statements may be identified by the use of words such as “ability,” “aim,” “assume,”
“estimate,” “plan,” “possible,” “project,” “forecast,” “goal,” “opportunity,” “intend,” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “enable,” “seek,” “target” or other similar
expressions that predict or indicate future events or trends or that are not statements of historical matters. These forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to,
statements regarding projections, estimates and forecasts of revenue and other financial and performance metrics, projections of market opportunity and expectations, the
Company’s ability to scale and grow its business, the advantages and expected growth of the Company and the Company’s ability to source and retain talent. These statements
are provided for illustrative purposes only and are based on various assumptions, whether or not identified in this Amendment, and on the current expectations of the
Company’s management. These forward-looking statements are not intended to serve, and must not be relied on by any investor, as a guarantee, an assurance, a prediction or a
definitive statement of fact or probability. Actual events and circumstances are difficult or impossible to predict and will differ from assumptions. Many actual events and
circumstances are beyond the control of the Company.

2 <,
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These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions, known or unknown, that could cause
actual results to vary materially from those indicated or anticipated. These risks, assumptions and uncertainties include those described under Part II. Item 1A of this
Amendment and in Part I. Item 1A. — “Risk Factors” of the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, filed
with the SEC on March 2, 2026. If one or more of these risks or uncertainties materializes, or if underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from
those indicated or anticipated by such forward-looking statements. There may be additional risks that the Company could not presently know or that the Company currently
believes are immaterial that could also cause actual results to differ from those contained in the forward-looking statements. In addition, forward-looking statements reflect the
Company’s expectations, plans or forecasts of future events and views as of the date of this Amendment and should not be relied upon as representing the Company’s
assessments as of any date subsequent to the date of this Amendment. The Company anticipates that subsequent events and developments will cause the Company’s
assessments to change. However, while the Company may elect to update these forward-looking statements at some point in the future, the Company specifically disclaims any
obligation to do so. Accordingly, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date they are made.
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Part I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements
Core Scientific, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except par value)

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Digital assets

Customer funding receivable and other current assets
Total Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment, net

Operating lease right-of-use assets

Other noncurrent assets

Total Assets
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Deficit

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Convertible and other notes payable, net of current portion

Warrant liabilities

Other noncurrent liabilities

Total Liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)
Stockholders’ Deficit:

Preferred stock; $0.00001 par value; 2,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding at June 30, 2025 and
December 31, 2024

Common stock; $0.00001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized at June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024; 303,146 and
292,606 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively

Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total Stockholders’ Deficit

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Deficit

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current year presentation.

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

June 30, 2025 (As December 31,
Restated) 2024
(Unaudited)
$ 581,345 $ 836,197
— 783
172,772 23,893
250,643 43,089
1,004,760 903,962
701,292 433,473
108,584 114,472
36,105 24,039
$ 1,850,741 $ 1,475,946
$ 215,055 $ 19,265
180,641 64,670
150,127 18,134
16,899 32,493
562,722 134,562
1,057,696 1,073,990
1,316,690 1,097,285
105,620 113,158
3,042,728 2,418,995
3 3
3,026,645 2,915,035
(4,218,635) (3,858,087)
(1,191,987) (943,049)
$ 1,850,741 $ 1,475,946




Revenue:

Digital asset self-mining revenue

Digital asset hosted mining revenue from customers

Colocation revenue
Total revenue
Cost of revenue:

Cost of digital asset self-mining

Cost of digital asset hosted mining services

Cost of Colocation services
Total cost of revenue

Gross profit
(Increase) decrease in fair value of digital assets
Decrease in fair value of energy derivatives
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Selling, general and administrative
Operating loss
Non-operating expense (income), net:
Loss on debt extinguishment
Interest (income) expense, net

Core Scientific, Inc.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Change in fair value of warrants and contingent value rights

Reorganization items, net

Other non-operating expense, net
Total non-operating expense, net

Loss before income taxes

Income tax expense
Net loss
Net loss per share (Note 13) - basic and diluted
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic and diluted

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 2025 (As Restated) 2024

$ 62,424 $ 110,743  § 129,603 $ 260,702
5,644 24,840 9,417 54,172

10,560 5,519 19,133 5,519

78,628 141,102 158,153 320,393

59,589 80,001 120,759 161,565

4,584 17,393 6,620 37,474

9,430 4,891 17,536 4,891

73,603 102,285 144,915 203,930

5,025 38,817 13,238 116,463

(29,797) 584 (19,109) 41

— 539 — 2,757

4,166 (268) 4,172 3,552

— 97,261 — 97,261

56,940 31,383 101,497 48,307
(26,284) (90,682) (73,322) (35,455)

1,377 120 1,377 170

(1,185) 14,775 (3,372) 28,862

909,958 796,035 288,494 735,921
— — — (111,439)

207 401 364 2,147

910,357 811,331 286,863 655,661
(936,641) (902,013) (360,185) (691,116)

158 144 363 350

$ (936,799) $ (902,157) $ (360,548) $ (691,466)
$ 0.04) $ (5.05) $ 023) $ (3.34)
317,985 178,505 316,593 207,092

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current year presentation.

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.



Core Scientific, Inc.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficit
For the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2025

(in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Balance at March 31, 2025 (As Restated)
Net loss
Stock-based compensation

Restricted stock awards issued, net of shares withheld for tax withholding
obligations

Equity issuance costs
Exercise of warrants

Common Stock . Total
Additional Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Amount Paid-In Capital Deficit (Deficit) Equity
299,087 3 2,973,015 (3,281,836) (308,818)

1,499

2,560

— —(936,799)  (936,799)

— 24,346 — 24,346
— (21) — (21)
— 29,305 — 29,305

Balance at June 30, 2025 (As Restated)

303,146

3 S 3,026,645 $(4,218,635) $(1,191,987)

Common Stock

Total

Balance at December 31, 2024
Net loss
Stock-based compensation
Restricted stock awards issued, net of shares withheld for tax withholding
obligations
Equity issuance costs
Exercise of warrants

Balance at June 30, 2025 (As Restated)

Additional Accumulated Stockholders’

Shares Amount Paid-In Capital Deficit (Deficit) Equity
292,606 3 2,915,035 (3,858,087) (943,049)
— — — (360,548)  (360,548)

— — 40,751 — 40,751
4,479 — (50) — (50)
— — (21) — 21)
6,061 — 70,930 — 70,930
303,146 3§ 3,026,645 $(4,218,635) $(1,191,987)

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.



Core Scientific, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficit
For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2024
(in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Common Stock Total

Additional Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Amount Paid-In Capital Deficit Deficit
Balance at March 31, 2024 182,237 $ 2 3 1,891,011 $ (2,209,522) $ (318,509)
Net loss — — — (902,157) (902,157)
Stock-based compensation — — 8,494 — 8,494
Issuance of new common stock in connection with
emergence 79 — 399 — 399
Restricted stock awards issued, net of tax withholding
obligations 115 — “4) — 4)
Exercise of warrants 54 — 420 — 420
Issuance of new common stock for New Secured
Convertible Notes conversion 4,525 — 26,545 — 26,545
Issuance of new common stock for PIK interest 882 — 3,677 — 3,677
Balance at June 30, 2024 187,892 §$ 2 9 1,930,542 $ (3,111,679) $ (1,181,135)

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Core Scientific, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficit
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2024
(in thousands)

(Unaudited)
Common Stock Additional A d Khond s
Shares Amount Paid-In Capital Deficit Deficit

Balance at December 31, 2023 386,883 $ 36 $ 1,823,260 $(2,420,237) $ (596,941)

Cumulative effect of adoption of ASU 2023-08, Accounting for and Disclosure of
Crypto Assets — — — 24 24
Balance at December 31, 2023, adjusted 386,883 36 1,823,260  (2,420,213) (596,917)
Net loss — — — (691,466) (691,466)
Stock-based compensation — — 7,434 — 7,434
Cancellation of common stock in connection with emergence (386,883) (36) 36 — —
Issuance of new common stock in connection with emergence 152,576 2 296,893 — 296,895
Issuance of new common stock under the Equity Rights Offering 15,649 — 55,000 — 55,000
Issuance of new common stock for the Equity Rights Offering backstop commitment 2,111 — 5,475 — 5,475
Issuance of new common stock for Bitmain obligation 10,735 — 27,839 — 27,839
Conversion premium on the issuance of the New Secured Convertible Notes — — 33,202 — 33,202
Issuance of warrants — — (345,856) — (345,856)
Exercise of stock options — — 9 — 9
Restricted stock awards issued, net of tax withholding obligations 1,400 — (3,392) — (3,392)
Restricted stock awards forfeited (40) — — — —
Exercise of warrants 54 — 420 — 420
Issuance of new common stock for New Secured Convertible Notes conversion 4,525 — 26,545 — 26,545
Issuance of new common stock for PIK interest 882 — 3,677 — 3,677
Balance at June 30, 2024 187,892 § 2 $ 1,930,542 $(3,111,679) $(1,181,135)

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Core Scientific, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)
Six Months Ended June 30,

2025 (As Restated) 2024
Cash flows from Operating Activities:
Net loss $ (360,548) $ (691,466)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 38,487 58,473
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,172 3,552
Impairment of property, plant and equipment — 97,261
Amortization of operating lease right-of-use assets 5,404 2,752
Stock-based compensation 40,355 7,434
Digital asset self-mining revenue (129,769) (260,701)
Proceeds from sale of digital assets generated by self-mining and shared hosting revenues' — 262,968
(Increase) decrease in fair value of digital assets (19,109) 41
Decrease in fair value of energy derivatives — (2,262)
Increase in fair value of warrant liabilities 289,400 809,320
Decrease in fair value of contingent value rights (906) (73,379)
Loss on debt extinguishment 1,377 170
Amortization of debt discount 3,365 1,125
Non-cash reorganization items — (143,791)
Non-cash PIK interest expense — 2,339
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Customer funding receivable and other current assets 22,978 1,979
Accounts payable (16,379) (11,480)
Accrued expenses (9,792) (46,257)
Deferred revenue from colocation services 131,293 —
Deferred revenue from hosted mining services 700 (1,917)
Other noncurrent assets and liabilities, net (12,069) 7,217
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (11,041) 23,378
Cash flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (205,259) (35,029)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 1,671 —
Purchase of equity investments (5,000) —
Investments in internally developed software (36) (125)
Net cash used in investing activities (208,624) (35,154)
Cash flows from Financing Activities:
Principal repayments of finance leases (1,125) (4,466)
Principal payments on debt (8,613) (28,348)
Debt extinguishment payments (26,862) —
Proceeds from exercise of warrants 630 367
Proceeds from issuance of new common stock — 55,000
Proceeds from draw from exit facility — 20,000
Restricted stock tax holding obligations — (3,390)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options - 9
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (35,970) 39,172
Net (decrease) increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (255,635) 27,396
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash—beginning of period 836,980 69,709
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash—end of period $ 581,345  § 97,105

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current year presentation.

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

! Proceeds from digital assets received as noncash revenue consideration liquidated nearly immediately after receipt as a routine operating activity.
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Core Scientific, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

1. ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Core Scientific, Inc. (“Core Scientific” or the “Company”) is a leader in digital infrastructure for high-density colocation services and digital asset mining of bitcoin. We
operate dedicated, purpose-built facilities for high-density colocation services and are a premier provider of digital infrastructure, software solutions and services to our third-
party customers. We employ our own fleet of computers (“miners”) to earn digital assets for our own account and we are in the process of converting most of our existing
facilities to support artificial intelligence workloads and next generation colocation services. We derive the majority of our revenue from earning bitcoin for our own account
(“self-mining”). Our facilities are located in Alabama (1), Georgia (2), Kentucky (1), North Carolina (1), North Dakota (1), Oklahoma (1), and Texas (3).

The Company has historically focused on designing, developing and operating digital infrastructure to engage in digital asset mining for its own account and providing
hosting solutions for third-party digital asset miners. Beginning on March 6, 2024, we announced a series of new contractual agreements with CoreWeave, Inc. (“CoreWeave”),
a third-party provider of high-performance computing (“HPC”) operations for customers using specialized graphics processing units (“GPUs”). These new agreements leverage
the Company’s existing digital infrastructure and expertise in third-party hosting solutions.

We currently operate in three segments: “Digital Asset Self-Mining,” consisting of digital asset mining for our own account, “Digital Asset Hosted Mining,” consisting
of our digital infrastructure and third-party hosting services for digital asset mining, and “Colocation,” consisting of providing high-density colocation services to third parties
for GPU-based HPC operations. Prior to April 1, 2024, we operated only in the Digital Asset Self-Mining and Digital Asset Hosted Mining segments. During fiscal year 2024,
our “Colocation” segment was referred to as “HPC Hosting.”

Our digital asset hosted mining business provides a full suite of services to our digital asset mining customers. We provide deployment, monitoring, troubleshooting,
optimization and maintenance of our customers’ digital asset mining equipment and provide necessary electrical power, repair and other infrastructure services necessary for
our customers to operate, maintain and efficiently mine digital assets.

Our high-density colocation services provide space, power, cooling, facilities operations, security and other services to third-party HPC customers to support workloads
for machine learning and artificial intelligence. The extension of our business into the Colocation segment involves significant risk, including risks involving facility
construction, supply chain and the risk of nonperformance by our single customer, as disclosed further in Part I, Item 1A. — “Risk Factors” of the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2025.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements reflect the application of certain significant accounting policies as described below
and elsewhere in these notes to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (“GAAP”). All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The results for the unaudited interim condensed consolidated statements of operations are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for the year ending
December 31, 2025 or for any future interim period. The unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements do not include all the information and notes required by
GAAP for complete financial statements. The accompanying unaudited interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements
and related notes included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of income
and expenses during the reporting period. Some of the more significant estimates include assumptions used in property, plant and equipment, the initial measurement of lease
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Core Scientific, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

liabilities, stock-based compensation, the fair value of derivative liabilities, and income taxes. These estimates are based on information available as of the date of the financial
statements; therefore, actual results could differ from management’s estimates.
Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. As of
June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $581.3 million and $836.2 million, respectively, substantially all of which exceeded
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limits. Cash equivalents included $576.4 million and $832.2 million of highly liquid money market funds as of June 30, 2025
and December 31, 2024. Restricted cash consisted of a deposit held at a lender’s bank in accordance with the terms of a note agreement.

Digital Assets

The following table presents a roll-forward of total digital assets for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 (in thousands):

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
Digital assets, beginning of period $ 23893 $ 2,284
Cumulative effect of ASU 2023-08, adopted January 1, 2024 — 24
Digital assets, beginning of period, as adjusted 23,893 2,308
Digital asset self-mining revenue, net of receivables? 129,770 261,566
Mining revenue from shared hosting — 13,818
Proceeds from sales of digital assets and shared hosting — (277,562)
Increase (decrease) in fair value of digital assets 19,109 (41)
Payment of board fee — (89)
Digital assets, end of period $ 172,772 § —

! Reflects the impact of the Company’s adoption of Accounting Standards Update (“ASU™) 2023-08, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other-Crypto Assets (Subtopic 350-60): Accounting for and Disclosure of Crypto Assets
(“ASU 2023-08”) effective January 1, 2024.

2 As of June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, there was $0.7 million and $0.9 million, respectively, of digital asset receivable included in prepaid expenses and other current assets on the condensed consolidated balance

sheets. As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, there was $0.8 million and $1.7 million, respectively, of digital asset receivable included in prepaid expenses and other current assets on the condensed consolidated
balance sheets.

The following table presents the Company’s bitcoin holdings (in thousands, except for quantity):

Quantity Cost Basis Fair Value
June 30, 2025 1,612 $ 154,755 § 172,772
December 31, 2024 256§ 24,991 §$ 23,893
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Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

Property, plant, and equipment includes the cost of land, buildings, and improvements for datacenter and support facilities and the Company’s corporate office space.
Property and equipment further consists of computer, mining, network, electrical and other equipment, including property and equipment under finance leases. Property, plant
and equipment, net is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are capitalized at cost and amortized over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the lease term. Future
obligations related to finance leases are presented as Finance lease liabilities, current portion and Finance lease liabilities, net of current portion in the Company’s condensed
consolidated balance sheets. Depreciation expense, including amortization of assets held under finance leases, is primarily included in Cost of revenue in the Company’s
condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Property, plant and equipment capitalized costs include the directly identifiable costs incurred to acquire, construct, install, or otherwise prepare the asset for its intended
use and to put it into service. Directly identifiable costs include construction payroll and benefits and other direct capital project costs.

When management decides to abandon long-lived assets before the end of their previously estimated useful life, the Company considers whether an impairment of the
related asset group has been triggered. If that asset group is no longer recoverable, an impairment is recognized for any excess of the asset group’s carrying value above its fair
value. Thereafter, the estimated useful life, salvage value, and prospective depreciation of the affected assets are revised to reflect their shortened remaining useful life. The
historical cost of assets, and related accumulated depreciation, are written off at the time that assets are removed from service.

Deferred Revenue

The Company records contract liabilities in Deferred revenue on the condensed consolidated balance sheets when cash payments are received in advance of performance
and recognizes them as revenue when the performance obligations are satisfied. The Company’s total deferred revenue balance as of June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024,
was $150.1 million and $18.1 million, respectively.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, the Company recognized $1.0 million and $1.3 million, respectively, of revenue that was included in the deferred
revenue balance as of the beginning of the year.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, the Company recognized $0.1 million and $6.5 million, respectively, of revenue that was included in the deferred
revenue balance as of the beginning of the year.

Advanced payments are typically recognized in the following month for hosted mining services and are generally recognized within 30 months of license order
commencement for colocation services.

Revenue From Contracts With Customers - Digital Asset Self-Mining Revenue

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with ASC 606, Revenue Recognition (“ASC 6067).

One of the Company’s ongoing major or central operations is to provide a service of performing hash calculations to third-party pool operators alongside collectives of
third-party bitcoin miners (such collectives, “mining pools”) as a participant. The Company considers the third-party mining pool operators to be its customers under Topic 606.
Contract inception and our enforceable right to consideration begins when we commence providing hash calculation services to the mining pool operators. Each party to the
contract has the unilateral right to terminate the contract at any time without any compensation to the other party for such termination. As such, the duration of a contract is less
than a day and may be continuously renewed multiple times throughout the day. The implied renewal option is not a material right because there are no upfront or incremental
fees in the initial contract and the terms, conditions, and compensation amount for the renewal options are at the then market rates.

The Company is entitled to non-cash compensation based on the Full-Pay-Per-Share (“FPPS”’) model of the mining pool it is a participant in. FPPS pools pay block
rewards and transaction fees, less mining pool fees, and the participants are entitled to non-cash consideration even if a block is not successfully validated by the mining pool
operator. The Company is entitled to compensation once it begins to perform hash calculations for the pool operator in accordance with the operator’s specifications over a 24-
hour period beginning mid-night UTC and ending 23:59:59 UTC on a daily basis. The non-cash consideration that we are entitled to for providing hash calculations to the pool
operator under the FPPS payout method is made up of block rewards and transaction fees less pool operator expenses determined as follows:
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*  The non-cash consideration in the form of a block reward is based on the total blocks expected to be generated on the Bitcoin Network for the daily 24-hour period
beginning midnight UTC and ending 23:59:59 UTC in accordance with the following formula: the daily hash calculations that we provided to the pool operator as a
percent of the Bitcoin Network’s implied hash calculations as determined by the network difficulty, multiplied by the total Bitcoin Network block rewards expected to
be generated for the same daily period.

*  The non-cash consideration in the form of transaction fees paid by transaction requestors is based on the share of total actual fees paid over the daily 24-hour period
beginning midnight UTC and ending 23:59:59 UTC in accordance with the following formula: total actual transaction fees generated on the Bitcoin Network during
the 24-hour period as a percent of total block rewards the Bitcoin Network actually generated during the same 24-hour period, multiplied by the block rewards we
earned for the same 24-hour period noted above.

*  The block reward and transaction fees earned by the Company is reduced by mining pool fees charged by the operator for operating the pool based on a rate schedule
per the mining pool contract. The mining pool fee is only incurred to the extent we perform hash calculations and generate revenue in accordance with the pool
operator’s payout formula during the same 24-hour period beginning mid-night UTC daily.

The above non-cash consideration is variable, since the amount of block reward earned depends on the amount of hash calculations we perform; the amount of
transaction fees we are entitled to depends on the actual Bitcoin Network transaction fees over the same 24-hour period; and the operator fees for the same 24-hour period are
variable since it is determined based on the total block rewards and transaction fees in accordance with the pool operator’s agreement. While the non-cash consideration is
variable, the Company has the ability to estimate the variable consideration at contract inception with reasonable certainty without the risk of significant revenue reversal. The
Company does not constrain this variable consideration because it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of revenue recognized from the contract will not occur
when the uncertainty is subsequently resolved and recognizes the non-cash consideration on the same day that control is transferred, which is the same day as contract
inception.

The Company measures the non-cash consideration using the spot rate for Bitcoin as quoted on Coinbase Global, Inc., the Company’s principal market. The Company
recognizes non-cash consideration on the same day that control of the contracted service is transferred to the pool operator, which is the same day as the contract inception.

Direct expenses associated with providing hash calculation services to a third-party operated mining pool, such as electricity costs and employee compensation, are
recorded as cost of revenues. Depreciation and amortization expenses on fixed and right-of-use assets, including digital asset mining equipment used to provide the services, are
also recorded as a component of cost of revenues.

Revenue From Contracts With Customers - Digital Asset Hosted Mining Services

The Company generates revenue from contracts with customers from digital asset hosted mining services. The Company generally recognizes revenue when the
promised service is performed. Revenue excludes any amounts collected on behalf of third parties, including sales and indirect taxes.

Hosting Services

The Company enters into contracts that include hosting services, for which revenue is recognized as services are performed on a variable basis. The Company performs
hosting services that enable customers to run blockchain and other high-performance computing operations. The Company’s performance obligation related to these services is
satisfied over time. The Company recognizes revenue for services that are performed on a consumption basis, such as the amount of electricity used in a period, based on the
customer’s use of such resources. The Company recognizes variable consumption usage hosting revenue each month as the uncertainty related to the consideration is resolved,
hosting services are provided to our customers, and our customers utilize the hosting services (the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of the
Company’s performance). The Company generally bills its customers in advance based on estimated consumption under the contract. The Company recognizes revenue based
on actual consumption in the period and invoices adjustments in subsequent periods or retains credits toward future consumption. The term between invoicing and when
payment is due typically does not exceed 30 days.
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Revenue Recognition - Colocation Revenue

Our Colocation segment generates revenue by leasing data center space to our customer under licensing agreements. These arrangements contain lease components for
the right to use data center space and nonlease components for power delivery, physical security, and maintenance services. We have elected the practical expedient available
under ASC Topic 842, Leases, to combine the nonlease revenue components that have the same pattern of transfer as the related operating lease components into a single
combined component. The single combined component is accounted for under ASC Topic 842 as an operating lease if the lease components are the predominant components
and is accounted for under ASC Topic 606 if the nonlease components are the predominant components. The lease components are the predominant components in our current
licensing arrangements and the single combined component in these arrangements are accounted for under the operating lease guidance of ASC Topic 842. Recognition of
Colocation lease revenue begins when we determine the asset has been made available for the customer’s use.

We have concluded that it is probable that substantially all of the payments will be collected over the term of the arrangements and recognize the total combined
component license payments under the agreements on a straight-line basis over the non-cancellable term. Straight-line license revenue represents the difference in revenue
recognized during the period and the license payments due pursuant to the underlying arrangement as deferred revenue in the condensed consolidated balance sheets. Certain
arrangements include options to extend the term. These extension options are not reasonably certain to be exercised and are excluded from the lease term and calculation of
lease payments at lease commencement. We commence recognition of lease revenue when control of the leased space is transferred to the customer, which we determine to be
the point at which the underlying space is available for the customer’s exclusive use.

Certain licensing arrangements provide for variable payments for power delivery services and maintenance services on customer assets and reimbursements for lessor
costs such as taxes. Payments for physical security and other routine maintenance services are included in the fixed lease payments. Power delivery services represent a stand
ready obligation to make power available to the customer over the coterminous lease term and have the same pattern of transfer as the related operating lease components.
Customers may request and the Company may provide maintenance services on customer assets during the coterminous lease term. Customers are charged monthly for fees
incurred on these maintenance services delivered and actual power costs incurred at current utility or fuel cost rates. These payments from customers for power delivery and
maintenance services are recognized as variable lease payments in accordance with the practical expedient elected. Variable lease payments are presented on a gross basis and
are included in Colocation revenue in the condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Performance Obligation Commitments

The Company’s performance obligation commitments relate to digital asset hosted mining services. The Company has performance obligations associated with
commitments in customer digital asset hosted mining contracts for future services that have not yet been recognized in the financial statements. As of June 30, 2025, for
contracts with original terms that exceed one year (ranging from 15 to 24 months), we expect to recognize approximately $3.4 million of revenue in the future related to
performance obligations associated with existing hosted mining contracts. The Company expects to recognize approximately 100% of this amount over the next 12 months.

Stock Based Compensation

The Company grants performance and market conditioned restricted stock units (“PSUs”) to certain executives as part of its long-term equity compensation program.
Each PSU has service conditions and either market or performance conditions that are subject to respective graded vesting schedules. Each tranche in the respective graded
vesting schedule is a separate award for accounting purposes and the Company applies the accelerated attribution method to recognize compensation expense. Compensation
expense is recognized over the longer of the explicit service period or the performance measurement period of each tranche.

PSU tranches with market conditions, such as the relative total shareholder return (“RTSR”) metric, are measured on the grant date using a Monte Carlo simulation
model. PSU tranches with performance conditions are measured using the grant date fair value of the Company’s common stock and are expensed only when the performance
condition is deemed probable of achievement. The Company reassesses the probability of achieving performance conditions at each reporting date and adjusts for actual
forfeitures as they occur.
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Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures (“ASU 2023-09”). Under this ASU, public
business entities must annually “(1) disclose specific categories in the rate reconciliation and (2) provide additional information for reconciling items that meet a quantitative
threshold (if the effect of those reconciling items is equal to or greater than 5 percent of the amount computed by multiplying pretax income or loss by the applicable statutory
income tax rate).” The amendments in ASU 2023-09 will be applied on a prospective basis and are effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024, with early
adoption permitted. The Company adopted ASU 2023-09 as of January 1, 2025 and will reflect the required disclosures in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ending
December 31, 2025. The adoption of ASU 2023-09 affects annual income tax disclosures only and does not impact interim reporting.

Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03, Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income - Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220-40):
Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses (“ASU 2024-03”), which requires disaggregation of certain expense captions into specified categories in disclosures within the
footnotes to the financial statements. The amendments in ASU 2024-03 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2026, with early adoption permitted. The
amendment should be applied prospectively; however, retrospective application is also permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this ASU will have on its
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

There are no other new accounting pronouncements that are expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements.

3. RESTATEMENT OF PREVIOUSLY ISSUED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2025, the Company determined that property, plant and equipment was
overstated as a result of the improper continued capitalization of carrying values of assets committed to demolition in connection with the conversion of certain facilities from
digital asset mining operations to high-performance computing colocation infrastructure, which impacted the Company’s previously issued consolidated financial statements as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2024, as well as the condensed consolidated financial statements as of and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2024, the three months ended March 31, 2025, the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, and the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2025. Specifically, the carrying values of assets committed to demolition were improperly capitalized rather than being written down to fair value through the
recognition of impairment charges in the periods in which the commitment to demolish was made.

The Company assessed the materiality of the errors, individually and in the aggregate, and concluded that the errors were material to the previously issued consolidated
financial statements and condensed consolidated financial statements set forth above and such previously issued financial statements should no longer be relied upon. As a
result, the Company is restating herein its previously issued condensed consolidated financial statements as of and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025.

The cumulative impact of the errors on the condensed consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2025 resulted in an overstatement of property, plant and equipment, net
of approximately $127.3 million and a corresponding understatement of accumulated deficit of the same amount. The impact on the condensed consolidated statements of
operations for the six months ended June 30, 2025 was an understatement of selling, general and administrative expense of approximately $4.4 million. The restatement had no
impact on total net cash flows; however, the correction resulted in a reclassification from capital expenditures within investing activities to operating activities. The restatement
had no impact on revenue, cost of revenue, or income tax expense. There was no income tax expense effect as the Company maintains a full valuation allowance against its net
deferred tax assets.
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The following tables present the impact of the restatement on the affected line items of the Company’s previously issued condensed consolidated financial statements (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2025 (Unaudited)

As Reported Adjustment As Restated
Assets

Property, plant and equipment, net $ 828,603 § (127,311)  $ 701,292

Total Assets 1,978,052 (127,311) 1,850,741
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Deficit
Stockholders’ Deficit:

Accumulated deficit (4,091,324) (127,311) (4,218,635)
Total Stockholders’ Deficit (1,064,676) (127,311) (1,191,987)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Deficit $ 1,978,052  $ (127,311) $ 1,850,741

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2025

As Reported Adjustment As Restated

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Selling, general and administrative $ 97,055 $ 4,442 § 101,497
Operating loss (68,880) (4,442) (73,322)
Loss before income taxes (355,743) (4,442) (360,185)
Net loss $ (356,106) $ (4,442) $ (360,548)
Net loss per share, basic and diluted $ 0.21) $ 0.02) $ (0.23)

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2025

As Reported Adjustment As Restated
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Cash flows from Operating Activities:
Net loss (356,1006) (4,442) (360,548)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities $ (6,599) $ (4,442) (11,041)
Cash flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (209,701) 4,442 (205,259)
Net cash used in investing activities $ (213,066) $ 4,442 (208,624)

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Deficit

The impact of the restatement on the Company’s condensed consolidated statements of stockholders’ deficit is limited to the effect on accumulated deficit, as reflected in
the condensed consolidated balance sheet table above. There was no impact to additional paid-in capital, common stock, or any other component of stockholders’ deficit.
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment, net as of June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024 consist of the following (in thousands):

June 30, 2025 (As

Restated) December 31, 2024 Estimated Useful Lives

Land and improvements! $ 21,728 $ 17,215 20 years
Building and improvements 177,446 186,267 10 to 39 years
Mining and network equipment 395,440 413,296 3 to 5 years
Electrical equipment? 70,778 74,077 15 years
Other property, plant and equipment 2,965 2,764 5 to 7 years

Total 668,357 693,619
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization’ 389,239 372,112

Total 279,118 321,507
Add: Construction in progress 422,174 111,966

Property, plant and equipment, net $ 701,292 $ 433,473

! Estimated useful life of improvements. Land is not depreciated.
2 Includes finance lease assets of $7.9 million and $8.5 million at June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively.

3 Includes accumulated amortization for assets under finance leases of $2.9 million and $3.0 million at June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively.

Depreciation expense, including amortization of finance lease assets, for the three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, was $18.6 million and $29.3 million,
respectively, and for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, was $38.1 million and $58.1 million, respectively.

5. BALANCE SHEET COMPONENTS

Customer funding receivable and other current assets as of June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024 consisted of the following (in thousands):

June 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Customer funding receivable $ 230,672 $ 7,442
Other 19,971 35,647
Total customer funding receivable and other current assets $ 250,643 $ 43,089

Customer funding receivable represents amounts due from our customer for construction related payables and accrued expenses incurred on their behalf. The Company
collects these amounts from the customer prior to payment to vendors. As of June 30, 2025, approximately $150.1 million of the related obligations were included in accounts
payable and approximately $80.6 million were included in accrued expenses.

Accrued expenses as of June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024 consisted of the following (in thousands):

June 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Accrued customer funded construction $ 80,618 § —
Accrued capital expenditures 67,643 12,106
Other 32,380 52,564
Total accrued expenses $ 180,641 § 64,670
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Lessee Accounting
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Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

The components of operating and finance leases are presented on the Company’s condensed consolidated balance Sseets as follows (in thousands):

Assets:
Operating lease right-of-use assets
Finance lease right-of-use assets
Liabilities:
Operating lease liabilities,

current portion

Operating lease liabilities, net
of current portion

Finance lease liabilities, current portion

Financial statement line item

June 30, 2025

December 31, 2024

The components of lease expense were as follows (in thousands):

Operating lease expense
Operating lease expense
Operating lease expense
Operating lease expense
Short-term lease expense
Variable lease expense
Finance lease expense:

Amortization of right-of-use assets

Interest on lease liabilities
Total finance lease expense
Total lease expense

Operating lease expense

Operating lease expense

Operating lease expense

Operating lease expense

Short-term lease expense

Variable lease expense

Finance lease expense:
Amortization of right-of-use assets
Interest on lease liabilities

Total finance lease expense

Total lease expense

Operating lease right-of-use assets 108,584 114,472
Property, plant and equipment, net 5,019 5,873
Other current liabilities 10,438 9,974
Other noncurrent liabilities 92,229 97,843
Other current liabilities 547 1,669
Three Months Ended June 30,
Financial statement line item 2025 2024
Cost of Colocation services $ 3402 $ 3,096
Cost of digital asset self-mining 76 99
Cost of digital asset hosted mining services 8 27
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,218 1,265
Cost of digital asset self-mining 339 75
Cost of Colocation services 304 —
Cost of digital asset self-mining 170 315
Interest expense, net 30 119
200 434
$ 5,547 § 4,996
Six Months Ended June 30,
Financial statement line item 2025 2024
Cost of Colocation services $ 6,809 $ 3,096
Cost of digital asset self-mining 160 197
Cost of digital asset hosted mining services 14 56
Selling, general and administrative expenses 2,425 2,540
Cost of digital asset self-mining 625 193
Cost of Colocation services 573 —
Cost of digital asset self-mining 396 649
Interest expense, net 79 1,040
475 1,689
$ 11,081 § 7,771
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Information relating to the lease term and discount rate is as follows:

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
Weighted Average Remaining Lease Term (Years)
Operating leases 8.1 6.9
Finance leases 0.2 1.1
Weighted Average Discount Rate
Operating leases 8.5 % 93 %
Finance leases 12.7% 12.4 %
Information relating to lease payments is as follows (in thousands):
Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Lease Payments
Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 4,495 $ 1,651 § 7,547 $ 1,720
Operating cash flows from finance leases $ 31 $ 119 $ 71 $ 1,729
Financing cash flows from finance leases $ 615 $ 912 §$ 1,125 $ 4,466
Supplemental Noncash Information
Operating lease right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease
obligations $ 109 $ — 3 109 $ —
Decrease in operating right-of-use assets due to lease modification $ — 8 — 8 (593) $ —

The Company’s minimum payments under noncancelable operating and finance leases having initial terms and bargain renewal periods in excess of one year are as
follows at June 30, 2025, and thereafter (in thousands):

Operating Leases Finance Leases

Remaining 2025 $ 9,168 $ 558
2026 19,031 —
2027 19,454 —
2028 19,890 —
2029 20,369 —
Thereafter 54,309 —
Total lease payments 142,221 558
Less: imputed interest 39,553 11

Total $ 102,668 $ 547
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Lessor Accounting

We generate revenue by leasing property to a customer under licensing agreements. The manner in which we recognize these transactions in our financial statements is
described in Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Revenue Recognition — Colocation Revenue.

The components of lease revenue were as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Lease Revenue
Operating lease revenue $ 7,010 $ 3,818 § 13,005 $ 3,818
Variable lease revenue 3,550 1,701 6,128 1,701
Total lease revenue $ 10,560 $ 5519 § 19,133  $ 5,519

The following table represents the maturity analysis of commenced minimum operating lease payments expected to be received at June 30, 2025, and thereafter (in
thousands):

Operating Leases”

Remaining 2025 $ 12,109
2026 28,836
2027 30,013
2028 35,874
2029 37,003
Thereafter 125,947

Total $ 269,782

() Operating lease payments expected to be received excludes $9.83 billion in total future noncancellable minimum lease payments for operating leases that have not yet commenced at June 30, 2025, which have initial
lease terms of 12 years from commencement.
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7. CONVERTIBLE AND OTHER NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable as of June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, consists of the following (in thousands):

Stated Interest Rate Effective Interest Rates Maturities June 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Convertible Notes:
2031 Convertible Notes —% 0.4% 2031 625,000 625,000
2029 Convertible Notes 3.0% 3.7% 2029 460,000 460,000
Equipment and Settlement:
Bremer loan 5.5% 5.5% 2027 — 10,669
Didado note 5.0% 15.0% 2027 — 8,964
HMC note 5.0% 15.0% 2026 — 9,042
Harper note 5.0% 15.0% 2026 — 3,119
Trilogy note 5.0% 15.0% 2026 — 2,107
Other:
ACM note —% 15.0% 2025 1,550 3,023
Other 71% -7.7% 7.1% -7.7% 2025 — 129
Notes payable 1,086,550 1,122,053
Less: Unamortized discounts 27,304 31,773
Total notes payable, net 1,059,246 1,090,280
Less: current portion 1,550 16,290
Convertible and other notes payable, net of current portion $ 1,057,696 $ 1,073,990

During the three months ended June 30, 2025, the Company fully repaid five higher-interest debt facilities, including the Bremer loan, Didado note, HMC note, Harper
note, and Trilogy note, totaling approximately $26.6 million in principal. The repayment resulted in a $1.4 million loss on debt extinguishment.

Interest expense on the 2029 Convertible Notes and 2031 Convertible Notes (together “Convertible Notes™) was as follows (in thousands):
Three Months Ended June Six Months Ended June 30,

30, 2025
Coupon interest $ 3450 $ 6,900
Amortization of debt discount and issuance costs 1,304 2,601
Total $ 4,754 $ 9,501
Maturities on convertible and other notes payable, gross of unamortized discounts, are as follows (in thousands):
Convertible Notes Other Notes Payable
Remaining 2025 $ — 1,550
2026 — —
2027 — —
2028 — —
2029 460,000 —
Thereafter 625,000 —
Total $ 1,085,000 $ 1,550
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8. WARRANT LIABILITIES
Warrant Agreement

On January 23, 2024, the Company entered into a warrant agreement (the “Warrant Agreement”) providing for the issuance of 98,313,313 warrants, each exercisable for
one share of New Common Stock at an exercise price of $6.81 per share (the “Tranche 1 Warrants™), and 81,927,898 warrants, each exercisable for one share of New Common
Stock at an exercise price of $0.01 per share (the “Tranche 2 Warrants” and, together with the Tranche 1 Warrants, the “Warrants”). The Tranche 1 Warrants expire on January
23,2027, and the Tranche 2 Warrants expire on January 23, 2029.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, 0.1 million and 0.1 million Tranche 1 Warrants were exercised, respectively, which resulted in cash receipts of
$0.3 million and $0.6 million. As of June 30, 2025, there were 97.5 million unexercised Tranche 1 Warrants.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, 2.5 million and 5.9 million Tranche 2 Warrants were exercised, respectively, which resulted in immaterial cash
receipts. As of June 30, 2025, there were 15.1 million unexercised Tranche 2 Warrants.

9. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Recurring Fair Value Measurements

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, a decrease in fair value of contingent value rights of $13.7 million and $0.9 million, respectively, was included in
Change in fair value of warrant and contingent value rights on the Company’s condensed consolidated statements of operations.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, an increase in fair value of Warrants of $923.7 million and $289.4 million, respectively, was included in Change in
fair value of warrant and contingent value rights on the Company’s condensed consolidated statements of operations.

The following presents the levels of the fair value hierarchy for the Company's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2025 (in
thousands):

Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Money market funds $ 576,361 $ — 3 — $ 576,361
Digital assets 172,772 — — 172,772
Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis $ 749,133 $ — 3 — § 749,133
Liabilities:

Contingent value rights' $ 3,366 $ — 3 — $ 3,366

Warrants 1,316,690 — — 1,316,690
Total liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis $ 1,320,056 § — — 8 1,320,056

! The fair value of contingent value rights is included within other current liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheets, based on the expected timing of settlement.
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The following presents the levels of the fair value hierarchy for the Company's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2024
(in thousands):

Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Money market funds $ 832,213 § — 3 — $ 832,213

Digital assets 23,893 — — 23,893
Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis $ 856,106 $ — 3 — § 856,106
Liabilities:

Contingent value rights' $ 4272 $ — 3 — $ 4,272

Warrants 1,097,285 — — 1,097,285
Total liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis $ 1,101,557 § — — 8 1,101,557

! The fair value of contingent value rights is included within other current liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheets, based on the expected timing of settlement.
Financial Instruments Not Carried at Fair Value
The Convertible Notes are recorded at amortized cost in the condensed consolidated balance sheets. The fair value is disclosed for informational purposes only in

accordance with ASC 825-10, Financial Instruments, and is determined using trading activity in over-the-counter markets. The following tables present the carrying amounts
and estimated fair values of the Convertible Notes as of June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024 (in thousands):

June 30, 2025

Carrying Amount Fair Value Fair Value Hierarchy
3.00% Convertible Senior Notes due 2029 $ 460,000 $ 795,101 Level 1
0.00% Convertible Senior Notes due 2031 $ 625,000 $ 679,666 Level 1
December 31, 2024

Carrying Amount Fair Value Fair Value Hierarchy
3.00% Convertible Senior Notes due 2029 $ 460,000 $ 703,100 Level 1
0.00% Convertible Senior Notes due 2031 $ 625,000 $ 615,800 Level 1

Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements

The Company’s non-financial assets, including property, plant and equipment, are measured at estimated fair value on a nonrecurring basis and are adjusted only upon
impairment or when held for sale. During the six months ended June 30, 2025, the Company did not recognize any impairment or other fair value adjustments related to non-
financial assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis.

No non-financial assets were classified as Level 3 as of June 30, 2025 or December 31, 2024.

The Company’s financial instruments, that are not subject to recurring fair value measurements, include cash and cash equivalents (other than money market funds),
restricted cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, leases, notes payable and certain accrued expenses and other liabilities. Except for the 2029 Convertible Notes and 2031
Convertible Notes, the carrying amount of these financial instruments materially approximate their fair values.
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10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments

As of June 30, 2025, the Company was contractually committed for and on behalf of our high-density colocation customer for approximately $1.71 billion of capital
expenditures, primarily related to infrastructure modifications, equipment procurement, and labor associated with the conversion of a significant portion of our data centers to
deliver high-density colocation services to customers. Of this amount, $1.26 billion will be passed through to the Company’s customer as invoiced and $427.9 million will be
funded by the customer as prepaid base license fees for the Colocation segment. These capital expenditures are expected to occur within the next 12 to 24 months.

Legal Proceedings

The Company is subject to legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. The Company accrues losses for a legal proceeding when it is probable that a loss
has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. However, the uncertainties inherent in legal proceedings make it difficult to reasonably estimate the
costs and effects of resolving these matters. Accordingly, actual costs incurred may differ materially from amounts accrued and could materially adversely affect the Company’s
business, cash flows, results of operations, financial condition and prospects. Unless otherwise indicated, the Company is unable to estimate reasonably possible losses in
excess of any amounts accrued.

Purported Shareholder Class Action (“Pang”)

On November 14, 2022, Plaintiff Mei Pang filed a purported class-action complaint against Core Scientific, Inc., its former chief executive officer, Michael Levitt, and
others in the United States District Court, Western District (Austin) of Texas asserting that the Company violated the Securities Act and Exchange Act by allegedly failing to
disclose to investors that among other things the Company was vulnerable to litigation given its decision to pass power costs to its customers, that certain clients had breached
their contracts, and that this impacted the Company’s profitability and ability to continue as a going concern. The complaint seeks monetary damages. Core filed a notice of
suggestion of bankruptcy stating that its petition for bankruptcy—filed on December 21, 2022—operates as a stay to the continuation of this matter. Plaintiff subsequently
withdrew its claims against Core. A lead plaintiff was appointed in April 2023 and proofs of claim were filed in the Company’s Chapter 11 Cases. After the Company filed its
motion to dismiss and a subsequent motion for consideration with respect to remaining claims not dismissed, all remaining claims in the complaint against the individual
defendants were subsequently dismissed without prejudice in April 2024.

On December 7, 2023, the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Texas in Houston, sustained the Company’s objection to the filed class proof of
claim without prejudice to re-file a proof of claim on an individual basis by December 20, 2023; and denied plaintiff’s Motion for Class Treatment under Fed. R. Bankr. P.
7023. No individual proof of claim was filed by any of the class representatives of the purported class action by December 20, 2023, and a separately filed objection to
confirmation of Debtors’ Fourth Amended Chapter 11 Plan and Disclosure Statement was overruled by the Bankruptcy Court on January 16, 2024. On January 29, 2024,
plaintift filed a notice of appeal of the order confirming the Company’s Plan of Reorganization.

On June 7, 2024, Plaintiff refiled its complaint asserting that the individual defendants violated the Securities Exchange Act by allegedly failing to disclose to investors
that among other things the Company failed to disclose known trends or uncertainties that would have an impact on the Company’s financial performance. The Company’s
motion to dismiss the refiled complaint is pending with the United States District Court in Austin, Texas.

On March 7, 2025, the United States District Court for the Western District (Austin) of Texas referred Plaintiff's complaint to the United States Bankruptcy Court for the
Southern District of Texas in Houston for determination of the issues raised by the Company's motion to dismiss, dismissed without prejudice Company's motion to dismiss as
moot and administratively closed the case. On March 19, 2025, the United States Bankruptcy Court Southern District of Texas Houston Division dismissed Plaintiff's appeal of
the order confirming the Company's Plan of Reorganization as it related to the Plaintiffs as moot in light of the administrative closure of the securities case brought by the
Plaintiffs in the United States District Court Western District of Texas. On April 2, 2025, the Plaintiff's filed a Motion for Reconsideration of the orders entered in each of the
United States District Court for the Southern District of Texas Houston Division and the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas (Austin) and the
Company filed its motions opposing each of Plaintiff’s motions for reconsideration.
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Purported Shareholder Class Action (“Ihle”)

On July 24, 2023, Plaintiff Brad Ihle filed a purported class action complaint against certain officers and directors of Power & Digital Infrastructure Acquisition Corp.
(the former name of the current corporate entity operating our business, or “XPDI”) and XMS Sponsor LLC et al, in the Court of Chancery State of Delaware. The complaint
alleges breach of fiduciary duties arising out of the merger of XPDI and the entity that conducted our business operations prior to the merger (“Legacy Core”) and the
marketing and solicitation of shareholders pursuant to that merger agreement dated July 20, 2021. Certain of the defendants have notified the Company of their intention to seek
defense and indemnification in this matter pursuant to Delaware law and the Company’s bylaws.

Employment Claim

On September 30, 2022, Harlin Dean, a former executive of Blockcap, Inc. (n/k/a Core Scientific Acquired Mining, LLC) sent a demand letter to the Company, seeking
approximately $9.8 million. Along with the demand letter, Mr. Dean enclosed a complaint that had been filed in the 419" Judicial District Court, Travis County, Texas, which
asserted the following causes of action: (1) breach of employment agreement; (2) quantum meruit; (3) promissory estoppel; (4) conversion; (5) declaratory relief; (6) equitable
relief/specific performance; (7) imposition of constructive trust; (8) accounting; and (9) attorneys’ fees and costs. According to Mr. Dean, the Company failed to honor the
terms of his employment agreement upon his resignation.

Following the Company’s filing of the Chapter 11 Cases, Mr. Dean filed proofs of claim in the Chapter 11 Cases alleging the Company breached Mr. Dean’s employment
agreement and various equity award agreements. Mr. Dean secks a total recovery of approximately $8 million. The Debtors filed an objection to Mr. Dean’s proofs of claim on
September 19, 2023. Mr. Dean filed a reply in support of his claim and moved for summary judgment on October 19. As a general unsecured creditor under the Plan of
Reorganization, any amount determined to be owed to plaintiff will be paid in common shares of the Company as provided in the Plan of Reorganization.

On January 24, 2025, the Company and Mr. Dean resolved Mr. Dean's proofs of claim and filed with the Bankruptcy Court a Stipulation and Agreed Order providing for
an Allowed General Unsecured Claim, payable pursuant to the Plan of Reorganization in 561,866 shares of New Common Stock issued by the Company to Mr. Dean from the
New Common Stock reserved for disputed claims as described in Note 12 — Stockholders’ Deficit to our consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of Part II of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, and do not represent a new issuance of shares.

Contract Claims

GEM Mining 1, LLC, GEM Mining 2, LLC, GEM Mining 2B, LLC, and GEM Mining 4, LLC (together “GEM”) have filed proofs of claim in the Chapter 11 Cases
alleging the Company breached its hosting agreements with GEM and are seeking to recover approximately $4.1 million. The Debtors filed an initial objection to GEM’s proofs
of claim on May 4, 2023, and filed a supplemental objection on May 6, 2023. GEM filed a response in opposition to Debtors’ objections on September 6, 2023. Additionally,
GEM 1 and GEM 4 filed proofs of claim in the Chapter 11 Case asserting approximately $8 million in rejection damages. The Debtors are currently preparing an objection to
these claims along with a reply to GEM’s response to the Debtors’ earlier filed objections. As a general unsecured creditor under the Plan of Reorganization, any amount
determined to be owed to plaintiff will be paid in common shares of the Company as provided in the Plan of Reorganization.

On January 28, 2025, the Company resolved GEM’s proofs of claim and filed with the Bankruptcy Court a Stipulation and Agreed Order providing for an Allowed
General Unsecured Claim, payable pursuant to the Plan of Reorganization in 817,775 shares of New Common Stock issued by the Company to GEM from the New Common
Stock reserved for disputed claims as described in Note 12 — Stockholders’ Deficit to our consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of Part IT of the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, and do not represent a new issuance of shares.

Patent Infringement Claim

Malikie Innovations Ltd and Key Patents Innovations Ltd., filed suit in the United States District Court Eastern District of Texas Marshall Division against Core
Scientific, Inc. (the “Company”) alleging infringement in the Company’s bitcoin mining business of U.S. Patent Nos. 8,788,827 (the “’827 Patent”); 10,284,370 (the “’370
Patent”); 8,666,062 (the *062 Patent”); 7,372,960 (the “’960 patent”); and 8,532,286 (the “’286 Patent”). On July 20, 2025 the Company filed a motion to dismiss the claims on
the basis that the patents are invalid under 35 U.S.C §101 and on July 25, 2025 the Company filed a motion to transfer the case to the United States District Court for the

Western District of Texas (Austin).
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As of June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, there were no other material loss contingency accruals for legal matters.

Leases—Sece Note 6 — Leases for additional information.

11. INCOME TAXES

Current income tax expense represents the amount expected to be reported on the Company’s income tax returns, and deferred tax expense or benefit represents the
change in net deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax basis of assets
and liabilities as measured by the enacted tax rates that will be in effect when these differences reverse. Valuation allowances are recorded as appropriate to reduce deferred tax
assets to the amount considered likely to be realized.

On July 4, 2025, H.R. 1, the “One Big Beautiful Bill Act” was signed into law. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, the Company will account for the tax effects of changes
in tax law in the period of enactment, which is the third quarter of calendar year 2025. The Company is currently in the process of analyzing the tax impacts of the law change,

but we do not expect a material impact to our financial statements.

The income tax expense and effective income tax rate for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 were as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
(in thousands, except percentages)
Income tax expense $ 158 $ 144  $ 363 $ 350
Effective income tax rate —% — % (0.1)% (0.1)%

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, the Company recorded $0.2 million and $0.4 million, respectively, of income tax expense which consisted of discrete
state taxes. The Company's estimated annual effective income tax rate without consideration of discrete items is 0.0%, compared to the U.S. federal statutory rate of 21.0% due
to projected changes in the valuation allowance (4.9)%, state taxes 0.1%, non-deductible loss on warrant and contingent liabilities (15.0)% and other items (1.2)%. The
Company has a full valuation allowance on its net deferred tax asset as the evidence indicates that it is not more likely than not expected to realize such asset.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, the Company recorded $0.1 million and $0.4 million, respectively, of income tax expense which consisted of discrete
state taxes. The Company's estimated annual effective income tax rate without consideration of discrete items was 0.0%, compared to the U.S. federal statutory rate of 21.0%
due to projected changes in the valuation allowance 3.2%, state taxes 0.1%, non-deductible loss on warrant and contingent liabilities (23.7)% and other items (0.5)%. The
Company has a full valuation allowance on its net deferred tax asset as the evidence indicates that it is not more likely than not expected to realize such asset.

12. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
Incentive Plan

The Company adopted an equity-based management incentive plan on April 26, 2024 (the “Incentive Plan”), which was amended and restated on May 12, 2025 to
increase the number of shares authorized for issuance from 40,000,000 to 48,000,000. Under the Incentive Plan, certain executives have been granted market condition
restricted stock units (“MSUs”) which are subject to the achievement of market-based share price goals and the executives’ continued service until the relevant vesting date.
The number of shares which vest as of the end of each measurement period on each vesting date are conditioned on the highest 20-day volume weighted average price of the
Company's share price achieved during the tranche’s measurement vesting period since grant. The MSU vesting schedule is proportionate over a three-year service period
where such proportions are identified as tranches with separate service conditions and measurement periods for the market conditions. If certain market-based share price goals
are not met during certain tranche measurement periods, the ability to satisfy such goals apply in subsequent measurement periods and permit vesting if such market conditions
are then met (and the service conditions are then satisfied). The following table presents additional information relating to each MSU award:
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Share Price Goal Incremental Units Tranche Cumulative Units

December 31, 2025 Vesting:

$ 3.14 144,041 144,041
$ 5.00 144,041 288,082
$ 8.00 144,041 432,123
$ 10.00 144,041 576,164
$ 12.00 144,041 720,205
$ 14.00 144,041 864,246
December 31, 2026 Vesting:

$ 3.14 142,050 142,050
$ 5.00 142,050 284,100
$ 8.00 142,050 426,150
$ 10.00 142,050 568,200
$ 12.00 142,050 710,250
$ 14.00 142,050 852,300

Performance Share Units

In April 2025, the Company granted PSUs to certain executive officers under the Incentive Plan. The PSUs are eligible to vest in three equal installments on April 15,
2026, March 15, 2027, and March 15, 2028, subject to satisfaction of the service condition and the achievement of three separate market or performance conditions during the
respective performance measurement period (for a total of nine tranches). The performance measurement period is generally the calendar year preceding each vesting date. The
number of shares earned at each vesting date range from 0% to 300% of target based on measures of satisfaction of the market or performance condition for each tranche.
Market conditions include RTSR metric, which is a measure of the performance of the Company’s own stock relative to the Russell 2000. Performance conditions include
aggregate energized MW growth and colocation customer acquisition targets.

The grant date fair value PSU tranches with RTSR market conditions were estimated using a Monte Carlo simulation model. The following assumptions were used to
determine the grant date fair value:

Three Months Ended June 30, 2025

Expected term of awards in years 0.7-1.0
Expected volatility 96 %
Risk-free interest rate 3.76% - 4.11%
Expected dividend yield 0%
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Stock-Based Compensation

A summary of RSU and MSU activity for the six months ended June 30, 2025, is as follows (amounts in thousands, except per share amounts):
Performance & Market Condition Restricted

Restricted Stock Units Market Condition Restricted Stock Units Stock Units
Weighted-Average ‘Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Number of Grant Date Fair Number of Grant Date Fair Number of Grant Date Fair
Shares Value Shares Value Shares Value
Unvested - December 31, 2024 18,341 § 7.68 1,728 $ 6.11 — % —
Granted 4,115 10.12 — — 6,255 11.14
Vested (4,479) 7.91 — — — —
Forfeited (744) 6.55 (12) 3.99 — —
Unvested - June 30, 2025 17,233 ¢ 8.20 1,716 § 6.13 6,255 § 11.14

As of June 30, 2025, unrecognized compensation cost and the related weighted-average period over which the cost is expected to be recognized for each award type were
as follows (in thousands):
Weighted-Average Recognition Period
Ye

Unrecognized Compensation Cost (Years)
RSUs $ 115,323 2.3 years
PSUs 50,261 2.8 years
MSUs 4,693 1.5 years
Total $ 170,277

Stock-based compensation expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, is included in the Company’s condensed consolidated statements of
operations as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Cost of revenue $ 941 $ 2,199 $ 2,323 § 3,158
Selling, general and administrative 23,229 6,295 38,032 4,276
Stock-based compensation expense, net of amounts capitalized! 24,170 8,494 40,355 7,434
Capitalized stock-based compensation® 176 — 396 —
Total stock-based compensation cost $ 24,346 § 8494 § 40,751 § 7,434

! The six months ended June 30, 2025 includes $3.0 million of stock-based compensation expense as a result of accelerated vesting of outstanding RSUs for former board members.

2 Represents the amounts of stock-based compensation capitalized to property, plant, and equipment.

13. NET LOSS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is measured as the income or loss available to common stockholders divided by the weighted average common shares outstanding for
the period. Upon exercise of the Tranche 2 Warrants, shares are issuable for little or no consideration, sometimes referred to as “penny warrants”. Under ASC 260-10-45-13,
those issuable shares are considered outstanding in the computation of basic EPS whether or not related warrants have been exercised. At June 30, 2025, approximately 15.6
million shares of common stock remain issuable upon the exercise of the Tranche 2 Warrants and are included in the number of outstanding shares used for the computation of
basic EPS for the three and six months then ended. Additionally, the basic EPS numerator includes an adjustment to eliminate the changes in fair value that have been
recognized in Net loss.
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Diluted EPS includes and presents the dilutive effect on EPS from the potential issuance of shares from unvested restricted stock units, conversion of convertible
securities, or the exercise of options and/or warrants. The potentially dilutive effect of convertible securities are calculated using the if-converted method. The potentially
dilutive effect of options or warrants are computed using the treasury stock method. When potentially dilutive securities have an anti-dilutive effect (i.e., increase income per
share or decrease loss per share), they are excluded from the diluted EPS calculation.

The following table sets forth reconciliations of the numerators and denominators used to compute basic and diluted net loss per share (in thousands, except per share
amounts):

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2025 2024 2025 (As Restated) 2024
Numerator:
Net loss $ (936,799) $ (902,157) $ (360,548) $ (691,466)

Add: Change in fair value of Tranche 2 Warrants 923,525 — 289,104 —

Basic and diluted net loss $ (13,274) $ (902,157) $ (71,444) $ (691,466)
Denominator:
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic and diluted 317,985 178,505 316,593 207,092
Net loss per share - basic and diluted $ 0.04) $ (5.05) $ 0.23) $ (3.34)

Potentially dilutive securities include securities excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS because to do so would be anti-dilutive. Shares which may be issued from
potentially dilutive securities are as follows (in thousands):

Three and Six Months Ended

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
Convertible Notes 69,611 40,059
RSUs, PSUs, and MSUs 25,204 18,778
Stock options 344 369
Tranche 1 Warrants 97,542 98,259
Total shares issuable from potentially dilutive securities 192,701 157,465

14. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company’s operating segments are aggregated into reportable segments only if they exhibit similar economic characteristics and have similar business activities.

The Company has three operating segments: “Digital Asset Self-Mining”, consisting of performing digital asset mining for its own account; “Digital Asset Hosted
Mining”, consisting of providing hosting services to third-parties for digital asset mining; and “Colocation”, consisting of providing high-density colocation services to third
parties for GPU-based HPC operations. The Company’s Colocation operations met the criteria to be considered a new segment during the second quarter of 2024. During fiscal
year 2024, our “Colocation” segment was referred to as “HPC Hosting.” The Digital Asset Self-Mining segment generates revenue from operating owned digital infrastructure
and computer equipment as part of a pool of users that process transactions conducted on one or more blockchain networks. In exchange for these services, the Company
receives digital assets. The Digital Asset Hosted Mining business generates revenue through the sale of consumption-based contracts for its digital asset hosted mining services
which are recurring in nature. The Colocation operation generates revenue through licensing agreements and orders with licensees that include fixed and variable payments on a
recurring basis.

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer is the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”). The CODM uses gross profit to evaluate performance and allocate resources.
Gross profit is used to evaluate actual results against expectations, which are based on comparable prior results, current budget, and current forecast. Gross profit is also used in
deciding how profits and cash flows will be reinvested or otherwise deployed. The CODM does not evaluate performance or allocate resources based on segment asset or
liability information; accordingly, the Company has not presented a measure of assets by segment. The segments’ accounting policies are the
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same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. The Company excludes certain operating expenses and other expenses from the allocations to
operating segments.
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The following table presents revenue and gross profit by reportable segment for the periods presented (in thousands):

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Digital Asset Self-Mining Segment (in thousands, except percentages)
Digital asset self-mining revenue $ 62,424 $ 110,743 $ 129,603 $ 260,702
Cost of digital asset self-mining:
Power fees 30,720 41,174 61,039 86,157
Depreciation expense 18,058 28,174 37,317 55,652
Employee compensation 8,272 6,038 15,607 10,718
Facility operations expense 2,089 3,231 5,369 6,181
Other segment items 450 1,384 1,427 2,857
Total cost of digital asset self-mining 59,589 80,001 120,759 161,565
Digital Asset Self-Mining gross profit $ 2,835 $ 30,742 $ 8,844 $ 99,137
Digital Asset Self-Mining gross margin 5% 28 % 7% 38 %
Digital Asset Hosted Mining Segment
Digital asset hosted mining revenue from customers $ 5,644 $ 24,840 $ 9,417 $ 54,172
Cost of digital asset hosted mining services:
Power fees 3,208 11,301 4,574 24,795
Depreciation expense 334 1,041 479 2,311
Employee compensation 779 1,640 1,110 3,044
Facility operations expense 220 880 368 1,765
Other segment items 43 2,531 89 5,559
Total cost of digital asset hosted mining services 4,584 17,393 6,620 37,474
Digital Asset Hosted Mining gross profit $ 1,060 $ 7,447 $ 2,797 $ 16,698
Digital Asset Hosted Mining gross margin 19 % 30 % 30 % 31 %
Colocation Segment
Colocation revenue:
License fees $ 7,010 $ 3,818 $ 13,005 $ 3,818
Maintenance and other 86 38 78 38
Licensing revenue 7,096 3,856 13,083 3,856
Power fees passed through to customer 3,464 1,663 6,050 1,663
Total Colocation revenue 10,560 5,519 19,133 5,519
Cost of Colocation services:
Depreciation expense 104 14 171 14
Employee compensation 1,148 78 2,442 78
Facility operations expense 4,336 3,101 8,187 3,101
Other segment items 378 35 686 35
Cost of licensing revenue 5,966 3,228 11,486 3,228
Power fees passed through to customer 3,464 1,663 6,050 1,663
Total cost of Colocation services 9,430 4,891 17,536 4,891
Colocation gross profit $ 1,130 3 628 $ 1,597 $ 628
Colocation licensing gross margin 16 % 16 % 12% 16 %
Colocation gross margin 11 % 11 % 8% 11 %
Consolidated
Consolidated total revenue $ 78,628 $ 141,102 $ 158,153 $ 320,393
Consolidated cost of revenue $ 73,603 $ 102,285 $ 144,915 $ 203,930
Consolidated gross profit $ 5025 $ 38817 $ 13238  § 116,463
Consolidated gross margin 6 % 28 % 8% 36 %
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A reconciliation of the reportable segment gross profit to loss before income taxes included in the Company’s condensed consolidated statements of operations for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, is as follows (in thousands):

Reportable segment gross profit
(Increase) decrease in fair value of digital assets
Decrease in fair value of energy derivatives
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Selling, general and administrative
Operating loss
Non-operating expense (income), net:
Loss on debt extinguishment
Interest (income) expense, net
Change in fair value of warrants and contingent value rights
Reorganization items, net
Other non-operating expense, net
Total non-operating expense, net
Loss before income taxes

Concentrations of Revenue and Credit Risk

Three Months Ended June 30,

Six Months Ended June 30,

2025 2024 2025 (As Restated) 2024
$ 5025 § 38,817 $ 13238 § 116,463
(29,797) 584 (19,109) 41
— 539 — 2,757
4,166 (268) 4,172 3,552
— 97,261 — 97,261
56,940 31,383 101,497 48,307
(26,284) (90,682) (73,322) (35.455)
1,377 120 1,377 170
(1,185) 14,775 (3,372) 28,862
909,958 796,035 288,494 735,921
- - - (111,439)
207 401 364 2,147
910,357 811,331 286,863 655,661
$ (936,641) $ (902,013) $ (360,185) $ (691,116)

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents. The Company places its cash
and cash equivalents with major financial institutions, which management assesses to be of high credit quality, in order to limit the exposure to credit risk. As of June 30, 2025
and December 31, 2024, all of the Company’s fixed assets were located in the United States. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, all of the Company’s
revenue was generated in the United States. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, 79% and 82% of the Company’s total revenue was generated from digital asset
mining of bitcoin from one customer. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, 78% and 81%, respectively, of the Company’s total revenue was generated from digital

asset mining of bitcoin from one customer. As of June 30, 2025 and 2024, substantially all of our digital assets were held by one third-party digital asset service.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, and 2024, the concentration of customers comprising 10% or more of the Company’s Digital Asset Self-Mining,
Digital Asset Hosted Mining, and Colocation segment revenue were as follows:

Customer

il e

Three Months Ended June 30,

Three Months Ended June 30,

Three Months Ended June 30,

2025 2024

2025

2024

2025

2024

Percent of Digital Asset Self-Mining

Percent of Digital Asset Hosted

Percent of Colocation segment
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N/A N/A 47 % 58 % N/A N/A
100 % 100 % N/A N/A N/A N/A
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N/A N/A N/A N/A 100 % 100 %
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Six Months Ended June 30,

Six Months Ended June 30,

Six Months Ended June 30,

2025 2024 2025 2024
Percent of Digital Asset Self-Mining Percent of Digital Asset Hosted Percent of Colocation segment
segment revenue: Mining segment revenue: revenue:
Customer
F N/A N/A 60 % 54 % N/A N/A
G 100 % 100 % N/A N/A N/A N/A
H N/A N/A N/A 25 % N/A N/A
J N/A N/A N/A N/A 100 % 100 %
L N/A N/A 32% N/A N/A N/A
15. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW AND NONCASH INFORMATION
The following table presents supplemental cash flow and non-cash information for the periods presented (in thousands):
Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024

Supplemental disclosure of other cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest 8,386 $ 18,074

Income tax payments (refunds) 457 (1,288)

Cash paid for reorganization items — 8 53,835
Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing and financing activities:

Purchases of PP&E in accounts payable and accrued expense 129,904 § (10,997)

Noncash exercise of warrants 19,559 —

Reclass of other current and non-current assets to plant, property, and equipment — 8,187

Reduction in plant, property, and equipment basis related to Bitmain purchase — (26,101)

Decrease in right-of-use assets due to lease termination — (6,560)

Increase in right-of-use assets due to lease commencement — 70,690

Increase in lease liability due to lease commencement — 69,577

Extinguishment of convertible notes upon emergence — (559,902)

Extinguishment of accounts payable, accrued expenses, finance lease liability, and notes payable upon emergence — (321,773)

Cancellation of common stock in connection with emergence — 37

Issuance of new common stock in connection with emergence — 296,891

Issuance of new common stock for Bitmain obligation — 27,839

Issuance of new common stock for the Equity Rights Offering backstop commitment — 5,475

Issuance of contingent value rights — 86,325

Issuance of warrants — 345,856

Issuance of New Secured Convertible Notes — 260,000

Issuance of Secured Notes, net of discount — 149,520

Issuance of Exit Credit Agreement including $1.2 million paid in kind upfront fee — 41,200

Issuance of miner equipment lender facility loans — 52,947

Issuance of notes related to settlement — 9,092

Cumulative effect of adoption of ASU 2023-08, Accounting for and Disclosure of Crypto Assets — 24

Issuance of new common stock for PIK interest on New Secured Convertible Notes — 3,676

Issuance of new common stock for New Secured Convertible Notes conversion — 3 26,390
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Core Scientific, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 7, 2025, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with CoreWeave. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, subject to
the terms and conditions set forth therein, CoreWeave will acquire the Company in an all-stock transaction. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, each outstanding share of the
Company’s common stock at the Effective Time (as defined in the Merger Agreement) will be cancelled and converted into a number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of
CoreWeave Class A common stock, equal to the exchange ratio of 0.1235. The transaction is subject to the approval of the Company’s stockholders and customary closing

conditions, including applicable regulatory approvals.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

» B

Unless the context otherwise requires, all references in this section to “we,” “us,” “our,” the “Company,” “Core Scientific,” or “Core” refer to Core Scientific, Inc. and
its subsidiaries.

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A ) is intended to promote understanding of the
results of operations and financial condition of the Company. This MD&A is provided as a supplement to, and should be read in conjunction with, our unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes to unaudited condensed financial statements (Part I, Item 1 of this Amendment) as well as the financial and
other information included in Amendment No. 1 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 2, 2026. This MD&A has been amended to give effect to the restatement of our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements, as more fully
described in Note 3 — Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements in Part I, Item 1 to the restated condensed consolidated financial statements included in this
Amendment. For further details regarding the restatement, see “Explanatory Note” and Part I, Item 4 — “Controls and Procedures.” This section generally discusses the results
of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, compared to June 30, 2024.

As discussed in the section titled “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements,” the following discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements
that involve risks and uncertainties, as well as assumptions that, if they never materialize or prove incorrect, could cause our results to differ materially from those expressed or
implied by such forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those identified below, and those
discussed in the section titled “Risk Factors” under Part I, Item 14 in Amendment No. 1 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 2, 2026.

Overview

[ NTRE TS
>

Core Scientific, Inc. (“we,” “us,” “our,” the “Company,” “Core Scientific,” or “Core”) is a leader in designing, building and operating digital infrastructure for high-
density colocation services and digital asset mining of bitcoin. Since our inception in 2018, we have been a premier provider and operator of dedicated, purpose-built facilities
and software solutions for digital asset mining for ourselves and our third-party customers. In 2024, we initiated a significant strategic transition from bitcoin mining to
colocation services for customers employing HPC workloads such as artificial intelligence-related applications.

We believe leveraging our existing infrastructure for high-density colocation services will provide more stable and predictable revenue streams and represents
substantially less risk than our traditional hosted bitcoin mining or our bitcoin self-mining operations. Last year, as a part of this transition, we announced arrangements at
multiple sites for the provision of high-density colocation services to a third party engaged in high-performance computing (“HPC”). We continue to focus our business
development and marketing efforts on expanding our high-density colocation customer base and increasing available infrastructure to provide high-density colocation services
to HPC customers.

We are constructing, refurbishing, reallocating or converting most of our ten facilities in Alabama (1), Georgia (2), Kentucky (1), North Carolina (1), North Dakota (1),
Oklahoma (1), and Texas (3) to support artificial intelligence related workloads, primarily for our existing HPC customer, but also to support our commitment to meeting the

growing demand for high-density colocation solutions and diversifying our revenue streams.

Currently, the vast majority of our revenue is from mining bitcoin for our own account (“self-mining”). In addition to our HPC activities described above, we will
continue to profitably mine digital assets until we identify actionable alternative high-density colocation service business opportunities.

We had billable power load of approximately 875 megawatts (“MW”) as of June 30, 2025. We had gross power of approximately 1,335 MW as of June 30, 2025.

Our average self-mining fleet energy efficiency for the three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 was 24.7 joules per terahash. Self-mining fleet energy efficiency is a
measure of our fleet’s average actual energy efficiency over the period presented.

Our total revenue was $158.2 million and $320.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. We generated an operating loss of $73.3 million

for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and $35.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. We generated net loss of $360.5 million and $691.5 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. Our adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“Adjusted EBITDA”) was $15.4 million and
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$134.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure. See “Key Business Operating Metrics and
Non-GAAP Financial Measures” below for our definition of, and additional information related to Adjusted EBITDA.

Recent Developments

On July 7, 2025, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with CoreWeave, Inc. (“CoreWeave”). Pursuant to the Merger
Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein, CoreWeave will acquire the Company in an all-stock transaction. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, each
outstanding share of the Company’s common stock at the Effective Time (as defined in the Merger Agreement) will be cancelled and converted into a number of fully paid and
non-assessable shares of CoreWeave Class A common stock, equal to the exchange ratio of 0.1235. The transaction is subject to the approval of the Company’s stockholders
and customary closing conditions, including applicable regulatory approvals.

During the three months ended June 30, 2025, the Company repaid five higher-interest debt facilities totaling approximately $26.6 million in principal. The repayment
resulted in a $1.4 million loss on debt extinguishment.

On February 26, 2025, the Company announced a new agreement with CoreWeave to deliver an additional approximately 70 MW of gross power at the Company’s
Denton, Texas facility.

Our Business Model
Business Overview

As a large-scale owner and operator of high-power digital infrastructure for digital asset mining and high-density colocation services, we believe that we are well
positioned to serve an expanding market for HPC operations. As noted in the “Business Strategy” section below, we believe that opportunities for growth exist in various
applications of our data centers for third-party customers focused on cloud computing as well as machine learning and artificial intelligence, which has driven our recent
expansion into providing high-density colocation services. Our digital asset mining operation is focused on earning bitcoin by solving complex cryptographic algorithms to
validate transactions on specific bitcoin blockchains, which is commonly referred to as “mining.” Our digital asset self-mining activity competes with myriad mining operations
throughout the world to complete new blocks on the blockchain and earn the reward in the form of bitcoin.

We intend to focus primarily on contracting our digital infrastructure for high-density colocation services, including allocating a significant portion of our current and
future data centers to support other forms of third-party HPC operations. As we identify additional high-density colocation services opportunities and contract to provide such
services to additional HPC customers our digital infrastructure will transition from digital asset mining to providing services to HPC customers. We will continue to mine
digital assets only so long as such activity remains profitable.

Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to grow our revenue and profitability by expanding our large-scale data center infrastructure portfolio configured for specialized computers
performing specific, high-value applications such as cloud computing, machine learning and artificial intelligence, and maximizing the portion of our infrastructure portfolio
contracted for high-density colocation services. We intend to continue to strategically develop and make operational the infrastructure necessary to support our existing
contractual commitments to our existing HPC customer and to support expected customer growth and additional demand by leveraging our data center expertise and
capabilities. We intend to seek additional opportunities and to engage additional customers in the high-density colocation services (“Colocation”) segment to expand our
business into these areas using our knowledge, expertise, existing and future infrastructure where favorable market opportunities exist.

Our strategy is focused on hyperscale cloud-based providers and enterprises who have significant data center infrastructure needs that have not yet been outsourced or
will require additional data center space and power to support their growth and their increasing reliance on technology infrastructure in their operations. We believe our
capabilities for serving the needs of large hyperscale providers and enterprises will continue to enable us to capitalize on the growing demand for outsourced data center

facilities in our markets and in new markets where our customers are located or plan to be located in the future.

On July 7, 2025, the Company entered into a Merger Agreement with CoreWeave. See Recent Developments above.
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Segments

We have three operating segments: “Digital Asset Self-Mining,” consisting of performing digital asset mining for our own account, “Digital Asset Hosted Mining,”
consisting of providing hosting services to third parties for digital asset mining, and “Colocation,” consisting of providing high-density colocation services to third parties for
GPU-based HPC operations. Prior to April 1, 2024, we operated only in the Digital Asset Self-Mining and Digital Asset Hosted Mining segments. During fiscal year 2024, our
“Colocation” segment was referred to as “HPC Hosting.”

Our Digital Asset Self-Mining operation segment generates revenue from the deployment and operation of our own large fleet of miners within our owned digital
infrastructure as part of a pool of users that process transactions conducted on one or more blockchain networks. In exchange for this activity, we receive digital assets in the
form of bitcoin.

Our Digital Asset Hosted Mining operation segment generates revenue through the sale of electricity-based consumption contracts for our hosting services, which are
recurring in nature. Our Digital Asset Hosted Mining operation segment provides a full suite of services to our digital asset mining customers. We provide deployment,
monitoring, troubleshooting, optimization and maintenance of our customers’ digital asset mining equipment and provide necessary electrical power, repair and other
infrastructure services necessary for our customers to operate, maintain and efficiently mine digital assets.

Our Colocation operation segment generates revenue by providing colocation, cloud and connectivity services to customers in exchange for a fee. Our Colocation
operation segment provides space, power, cooling, facilities operations, security and other services to third-party HPC customers to support workloads for machine learning and

artificial intelligence.

Mining Equipment

We own and host specialized computers (“miners”) configured for the purpose of validating transactions on multiple digital asset network blockchains (referred to as,

“mining”), predominantly the Bitcoin network. Substantially all of the miners we own and host were manufactured by Bitmain Technologies Limited (“Bitmain”) and

incorporate application-specific integrated circuit (“ASIC”) chips specialized to solve blocks on the bitcoin blockchains using the 256-bit secure hashing algorithm (“SHA-

256”) in return for bitcoin digital asset rewards.

The tables below summarize the total number of self- and hosted miners in operation as of June 30, 2025, December 31, 2024 and June 30, 2024 (miners in thousands):

Bitcoin Miners in Operation as of June 30, 2025

Mining Equipment Hash rate (EH/s) Number of Miners
Self-miners 17.6 151.4
Hosted miners 3.0 21.7
Total mining equipment 20.6 173.1
Bitcoin Miners in Operation as of December 31, 2024
Mining Equipment Hash rate (EH/s) Number of Miners
Self-miners 19.1 164.0
Hosted miners 1.0 7.1
Total mining equipment 20.1 171.1
Bitcoin Miners in Operation as of June 30, 2024
Mining Equipment Hash rate (EH/s) Number of Miners
Self-miners 19.4 163.5
Hosted miners 52 41.8
24.6 205.3

Total mining equipment
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Summary of Digital Asset Activity

Activity related to our digital asset balances for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, were as follows (in thousands):

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
Digital assets, beginning of period $ 23,893 $ 2,284
Cumulative effect of ASU 2023-08, adopted January 1, 2024! 24
Digital assets, beginning of period, as adjusted 23,893 2,308
Digital asset self-mining revenue, net of receivables’ 129,770 261,566
Mining proceeds from shared hosting — 13,818
Proceeds from sales of digital assets — (277,562)
Change in fair value of digital assets 19,109 (41)
Payment of board fee — (89)
Other — —
Digital assets, end of period $ 172,772 $ —

! Reflects the impact of the Company’s adoption of Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2023-08, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other-Crypto Assets (Subtopic 350-60): Accounting for and Disclosure of Crypto Assets
(“ASU 2023-08”) effective January 1, 2024.

2 As of June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, there was $0.7 million and $0.9 million, respectively, of digital asset receivable included in prepaid expenses and other current assets on the condensed consolidated balance
sheets. As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, there was $0.8 million and $1.7 million, respectively, of digital asset receivable included in prepaid expenses and other current assets on the condensed consolidated
balance sheets.

Performance Metrics
Hash Rate

Miners perform computational operations in support of digital asset blockchains measured in “hash rate” or “hashes per second.” A “hash” is the computation run by
mining hardware in support of the blockchain; therefore, a miner’s “hash rate” refers to the rate at which it is capable of solving such computations. The equipment originally
employed for mining bitcoin used the central processing unit (“CPU”) of a computer to mine various forms of digital assets. Due to performance limitations, CPU mining was
rapidly replaced by the graphics processing unit (“GPU”), which offers significant performance advantages over CPUs. General purpose chipsets like CPUs and GPUs have
since been replaced as the standard in the mining industry by ASIC chips such as those found in the miners we and our customers use to mine bitcoin (although they continue to
have uses in other industries). These ASIC chips are designed specifically to maximize the rate of hashing operations.

Network Hash Rate

In digital asset mining, hash rate is a measure of the processing speed at which a mining computer operates in its attempt to secure a specific digital asset. A participant in
a blockchain network’s mining function has a hash rate equivalent to the total of all its miners seeking to mine a specific digital asset. System-wide, the total network hash rate
reflects the sum total of all miners seeking to mine each specific type of digital asset. A participant’s higher total hash rate relative to the system-wide total hash rate generally
results in a corresponding higher success rate in digital asset rewards over time as compared to mining participants with relatively lower total hash rates.

However, as the relative market price for a digital asset, such as bitcoin, increases, more users are incentivized to mine for that digital asset, which increases the
network’s overall hash rate. As a result, a mining participant must increase its total hash rate in order to maintain its relative possibility of solving a block on the network
blockchain. Achieving greater hash rate power by deploying increasingly sophisticated miners in ever greater quantities has become one of the bitcoin mining industry’s
great sources of competition. Our goal is to deploy a powerful fleet of self- and hosted-miners, while operating as energy-efficiently as possible.

Key Factors Affecting Our Financial Performance
Market Price of Digital Assets

Our Digital Asset Self-Mining segment is heavily dependent on the spot price of bitcoin. The prices of digital assets, specifically bitcoin, have experienced substantial
volatility, meaning that high or low prices may have little or no relationship to identifiable market forces, may be subject to rapidly changing investor sentiment, and may be
influenced by factors such as technology, regulatory void or changes, fraudulent actors, manipulation, and media reporting. Bitcoin (as well as other digital assets)
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may have value based on various factors, including their acceptance as a means of exchange by consumers and others, scarcity, and market demand.

Our financial performance and continued growth depend in large part on our ability to mine for digital assets profitably and to attract customers for our digital asset
hosted mining services. Increases in power costs, inability to mine digital assets efficiently and to sell digital assets at favorable prices will reduce our operating margins,
impact our ability to attract customers for our services, may harm our growth prospects and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations. Over time, we have observed a positive trend in the total market capitalization of digital assets, which suggests increased adoption. However, historical trends are
not indicative of future adoption, and it is possible that the adoption of digital assets and blockchain technology may slow, take longer to develop, or never be broadly adopted,
which would negatively impact our business and operating results.

Network Hash Rate

Our business is not only impacted by the volatility in digital asset prices, but also by increases in the competition for digital asset production. For bitcoin, this increased
competition is described as the network hash rate resulting from the growth in the overall quantity and quality of miners working to solve blocks on the bitcoin blockchain, and
the difficulty index associated with the secure hashing algorithm employed in solving the blocks.

Difficulty

The increase in bitcoin’s network hash rate results in a regular increase in the cryptographic complexity associated with solving blocks on its blockchain, or its difficulty.
Increased difficulty reduces the mining proceeds of the equipment proportionally and eventually requires bitcoin miners to upgrade their mining equipment to remain profitable
and compete effectively with other miners. Similarly, a decline in network hash rate results in a decrease in difficulty, increasing mining proceeds.

Transaction Fees
Bitcoin miners receive a transaction fee in the form of a portion of bitcoin for validating transactions on the Bitcoin network. The transaction fee can vary in value over

time, with higher fees prioritizing certain transactions over those with lower fees. An increase in Bitcoin network transaction fees increases mining proceeds.

The table below provides a summary of the impact to revenue from the increase or decrease in the market price of bitcoin, difficulty and our hash rate. The impact to
revenue in each scenario assumes only one driver increases or decreases and all others are held constant.

Impact to Revenue

Driver Increase in Driver Decrease in Driver

Market Price of Bitcoin Favorable Unfavorable

Core Scientific Hash Rate Favorable Unfavorable

Difficulty Unfavorable Favorable

Transaction Fees Favorable Unfavorable
Tariffs

Beginning on February 1, 2025, the United States government has announced a series of additional tariffs on goods imported to the United States raising concerns about
material price inflation and delivery delays with respect to equipment and materials needed for our high-density colocation data center conversions and also with respect to
parts, machinery and hardware used in our digital asset mining business. To date, tariffs have had no material impact on our costs or business operations, but we continue to
analyze the impact of these tariffs on our business and actions we can take to minimize any future impact. Our agreement with our largest high- density colocation customer is
funded almost entirely by our customer and our financial contribution is capped at a fixed dollar amount limiting the overall potential impact of tariffs on our existing and
future capital expenditures. Tariffs, however, could have additional material and yet unforeseen impacts on our results of operations in fiscal year 2025 and future years.
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Potential Impact of “Big Beautiful Bill” Legislation

On July 4, 2025, H.R. 1, the “One Big Beautiful Bill Act” was signed into law. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, the Company will account for the tax effects of changes
in tax law in the period of enactment, which is the third quarter of calendar year 2025. The Company is currently in the process of analyzing the tax impacts of the law change,
but we do not expect a material impact to our financial statements.

Halving

Further affecting the industry, and particularly for the bitcoin blockchain, the digital asset reward for solving a block is subject to periodic incremental halving. Halving
is a process designed to control the overall supply and reduce the risk of inflation in digital assets using a proof-of-work consensus algorithm. At a predetermined block, the
mining reward is reduced by half, hence the term “halving.” A reduction in the number of bitcoins rewarded per block would result in a reduction of revenue to those mining
bitcoin, barring any increase in the spot price of bitcoin or decrease in Bitcoin network hash rate or difficulty. Historically, the network hash rate has tended to decline, for a
period of time, post-halving as less efficient mining servers become less profitable to operate and their operators discontinue or limit their use.

For bitcoin, our most significant digital asset to which our mining power is devoted, the reward was initially set at 50 bitcoin rewards per block. The bitcoin blockchain
has undergone halving four times since its inception, as follows: (1) on November 28, 2012, at block 210,000; (2) on July 9, 2016 at block 420,000; (3) on May 11, 2020 at
block 630,000; and (4) on April 19, 2024 at block 840,000, when the reward was reduced to its current level of 3.125 bitcoin per block. The next halving for the bitcoin
blockchain is anticipated to occur in 2028 at block 1,050,000. This process will repeat until the total amount of bitcoin rewards issued reaches 21 million and the theoretical
supply of new bitcoin is exhausted, which is expected to occur around the year 2140. Many factors influence the price of bitcoin and the other digital assets we may mine for,
and potential increases or decreases in prices in advance of or following a future halving are unknown.

Business Mix Shift to High-Density Colocation Services

The planned growth of our Colocation operation, through increased investment in conversion of several of our bitcoin mining sites to Colocation operation sites over the
next several years, should gradually reduce our overall exposure to volatility in the spot price of bitcoin as our Colocation segment begins to account for a comparatively larger
percentage of our financial results. The Colocation operation is characterized by implementation of long-term contracts with customers spanning several years with terms and
conditions outlining and resulting in stable, predictable revenue and cash flows over each period.

Electricity Costs

Electricity cost is the major operating cost for the mining fleet, as well as for the hosting services provided to customers. The cost and availability of electricity are
affected primarily by changes in seasonal demand, with peak demand during the summer months driving higher costs and increased curtailments to support grid operators.
Severe winter weather can increase the cost of electricity and the frequency of curtailments when it results in damage to power transmission infrastructure that reduces the
grid’s ability to deliver power. Geopolitical and macroeconomic factors, such as overseas military or economic conflict between states, can adversely affect electricity costs by
raising the cost of power generation inputs such as natural gas. Other events out of our control can also impact electricity costs and availability. In certain power markets,
financial hedging can be employed to protect buyers from the financial impact of significant increases in power prices.

Data Center Infrastructure Costs

To support our commitment to meeting the growing demand for high-density colocation solutions, we are constructing, refurbishing, reallocating or converting most of
our ten data center facilities to support high-density colocation services. The costs associated with data center infrastructure conversion include labor, equipment and materials
and is subject to supply chain and logistical challenges.

Our Competition and Customers

In addition to factors underlying our mining business growth and profitability, the success of our Colocation operation greatly depends on our ability to retain and
develop opportunities with our existing customers, secure additional infrastructure and attract new customers.
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Our business environment is constantly evolving. However, digital asset mining is now dominated by large-scale, industrial miners operating large dedicated facilities
around the world, including sovereign nation states with vast resources who mine directly or support mining operations through their sovereign wealth funds, all of whom
compete to solve new blocks, acquire new and used miners, and purchase and consume energy and supplies to build mining facilities. We face significant competition in every
aspect of our business, including, but not limited to, the acquisition of new miners, the ability to raise capital, obtaining low-cost electricity, obtaining access to sites with
reliable sources of high power, and evaluating new technology developments in the industry.

Presently, the information concerning the activities of digital asset miners may not be readily available as most of the participants in this sector do not publish
information publicly, or the information may be unreliable. Published sources of information include “bitcoin.org” and “blockchain.info;” however, the reliability of that
information and its continued availability cannot be assured.

Based on available data, we believe that an increase in the scale and sophistication of competition in the digital asset mining industry has continued to increase network
hash rate, with new entrants and existing competitors increasing the number of miners mining for bitcoin.

Despite this trend, we believe we have continued to maintain a competitive hash rate capacity among both public and private bitcoin miners. However, remaining
competitive in our evolving industry, both against new entrants into the market and existing competitors, will require the expansion of our existing miner fleet by purchasing
new and available used miners, as well as innovating to develop and implement new technologies and mining solutions.

In our Colocation operation, we compete with other providers of high-power data center capacity, such as major data center real estate investment trusts (“REITs”),
developers of data centers, hyperscalers and bitcoin miners with capacity suitable for high-density colocation services. This competition focuses primarily on the identification
and acquisition of new, high-power sites, but also includes competition for the capital required to build or modify existing sites to support high-density colocation. Additionally,
the modification of some of our data centers to accommodate our Colocation operation involves the procurement of critical equipment, technologies and skilled labor, which
are in high demand from other entities seeking to address the same market opportunity, thereby putting us into competition with many other organizations for those resources.

We believe that because of our operational high-power data center capacity and the experience, knowledge, capabilities and relationships of our data center development
and operations team, we are uniquely qualified to address the current strong demand for high-power data center capacity to support HPC applications successfully.

Differentiation, Innovation and Expansion of Our Platform

Our investments in research and development drive differentiation of our service offerings, core technology innovation and our ability to bring new products to market.

We believe we possess unique knowledge of data center design principles and systems integration architectures, as well as extensive experience designing, constructing
and operating data centers that differentiates and informs our plans for modifying digital asset mining data centers to support our Colocation operation, and for developing new

data centers designed to support future high-value computing requirements. This knowledge includes designs for higher rack energy densities than currently offered in the
legacy data center market to satisfy emerging requirements for advanced technologies supporting emerging workloads such as artificial intelligence.

We believe that we differentiate ourselves by offering premium products and services, including our ability to manage our power sourcing and construct proprietary,
passively-cooled digital asset mining data centers at scale. Our operational digital asset mining facilities leverage our specialized design and construction proficiency by
employing high-density, low-cost engineering and power designs. Our proprietary thermodynamic solution manages heat and airflow to deliver best-in-class uptime and,
ultimately, increases mining rewards to us and to our hosted mining customers. We design our facilities to maximize both the efficiency and lifespan of our mining equipment.
We have developed expertise in the installation, operation, optimization and repair of digital mining equipment. We continue to refine and develop our data center design and
technology solutions to optimize our operations with the knowledge gained from our considerable digital asset mining experience, including optimizing the location of miners
in our data centers to increase profitability. Our approach to data center design enables us to deliver efficiency at scale.
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We develop proprietary hardware and software solutions that support our current operations and represent potential future growth opportunities. We intend to continue to
invest judiciously in research and development activities to extend our platform management and software solutions in order to manage our infrastructure and mining fleet more
efficiently and productively.

Regulation

Due to the relatively short history of digital assets, and their emergence as a new asset class, government regulation of blockchain and digital assets is constantly
evolving, with increased interest expressed by U.S. and internal regulators. In October 2020, the Cyber-Digital Task Force of the U.S. Department of Justice published a report
entitled “Cryptocurrency: An Enforcement Framework” that detailed the Department’s view with respect to digital assets and the tools at the Department’s disposal to deal with
threats posed by digital assets. In February 2021, representatives of the government of Inner Mongolia, China announced plans to ban digital asset mining within the province
due to the energy and rare earth mineral demands of the industry. In March 2021, the nominee for Chair of the SEC expressed the need for investor protection along with
promotion of innovation in the digital asset space. In March 2022, former President Biden signed an Executive Order outlining an “whole-of-government” approach to
addressing the risks and harnessing the potential benefits of digital assets and its underlying technology. The executive order lays out a national policy for digital assets over six
highlighted priorities. In January 2023, the U.S. House of Representatives created a new congressional subcommittee focused on digital assets, the Subcommittee of Digital
Assets, Financial Technology and Inclusion, operating under the House Financial Services Committee. Most recently, in January 2025, the Acting SEC Chairman announced
the launch of a crypto task force dedicated to developing a comprehensive and clear regulatory framework for crypto assets, in contrast to the SEC’s prior reliance on
enforcement actions to regulate cryptocurrencies. Further, on May 29, 2025, the Digital Asset Market Clarity Act (the “Clarity Act”) was introduced in the U.S. House of
Representatives. The Clarity Act provides a regulatory framework for digital assets by clarifying the roles of the SEC and CFTC in oversight of various digital assets and
transactions in digital assets. The Clarity Act defines several categories of digital assets: digital commodities and permitted payment stablecoins, which would be subject to the
jurisdiction of the CFTC, and excluded digital commodities, such as securities, which would be subject to the jurisdiction of the SEC. The extent and content of any
forthcoming laws and regulations are not yet ascertainable with certainty, and they may not be ascertainable in the near future.

In addition to the activities of the United States federal government and its various agencies and regulatory bodies, government regulation of blockchain and digital
assets is also under active consideration by similar entities in other countries and transnational organizations, such as the European Union. State and local regulations within the
United States also may apply to our activities and other activities in which we may participate in the future. Other governmental or semi-governmental regulatory bodies have
shown an interest in regulating or investigating companies engaged in blockchain or digital asset businesses. For instance, the SEC has taken an active role in regulating the use
of public offerings of proprietary coins (so-called “initial coin offerings”) and has made statements and official promulgations as to the status of certain digital assets as
“securities” subject to regulation by the SEC.

Our facilities in Texas represent a significant portion of our gross power and are subject to Senate Bill 6 (“SB 6”), a statewide law enacted in June 2025 that governs
large electric loads (75 megawatts or greater) within the Electric Reliability Council of Texas (“ERCOT”) region. This law imposes binding operational and interconnection
requirements on large-load customers. Under SB 6, facilities above the applicable threshold are required to participate in demand response programs administered by ERCOT,
which may require temporary reductions in power usage during periods of grid constraint. The legislation also grants ERCOT and certain local utilities authority to curtail load,
including initiating mandatory power reductions or disconnections during emergency grid conditions. Additionally, SB 6 establishes enhanced interconnection protocols,
including required disclosures related to behind-the-meter generation, limitations on duplicative interconnection requests, and minimum study fees associated with new or
expanded load. The law further permits utilities to allocate certain transmission and infrastructure upgrade costs to the interconnecting customer. These provisions may impact
the timing, economics, or operational flexibility of our existing and future data center deployments within Texas.

Key Business Operating Metrics and Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In addition to our financial results, we use the following business operating metrics and non-GAAP financial measures to evaluate our business, measure our
performance, identify trends affecting our business, and make strategic decisions. For a definition
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of these key business operating metrics, see the sections titled “Self-Mining Hash Rate,” and “Cost of Self-Mining One Bitcoin and Hash Cost,” (below), and for non-GAAP
financial measures, see the section titled “Adjusted EBITDA” (below).

June 30,
2025 2024

Self-Mining Hash rate (Exahash per second) 17.6 19.4

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2025 2024 2025 2024
Adjusted EBITDA (in millions) $ 215§ 46.0 $ 154 $ 134.0

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2025 2024 2025 2024
Cash Costs per Bitcoin
Power cost per bitcoin self-mined $ 48,407 $ 24,533 $ 45,099 $ 19,136
Operational costs per bitcoin self-mined’ 15,962 5,346 15,158 3,830
Total cost to self-mine one bitcoin? $ 64,369 $ 29,879 $ 60,257 $ 22,966
Cash-Based Hash Cost’
Power cost per terahash $ 0.025 $ 0.025 $ 0.025 $ 0.026
Operational costs per terahash! 0.008 0.005 0.008 0.005
Total cash-based hash cost® $ 0.033 §$ 0.030 $ 0.033 $ 0.031

! Includes personnel and related costs, software, telecommunications, security, etc. Amount excludes stock-based compensation and depreciation.
2 Represents our direct cash costs of power and operational costs based on our self-mining/hosting mix divided by total bitcoin self-mined during the periods presented.

3 Represents the cash expense of power and facilities operation cost divided by our self-mining fleet hash rate, in terahash.

Self-Mining Hash Rate

We operate mining hardware which performs computational operations in support of the blockchain measured in “hash rate” or “hashes per second.” A “hash” is the
computation run by mining hardware in support of the blockchain; therefore, a miner’s “hash rate” refers to the rate at which the hardware is capable of solving such
computations. Our hash rate represents the hash rate of our miner fleet, which drives the digital asset rewards that will be earned by our fleet. We calculate and report our hash
rate in exahash per second (“EH/s”). One exahash equals one quintillion hashes per second.

We measure the hash rate produced by our mining fleet through our management software Minder™, which consolidates the reported hash rate from each miner. The
method by which we measure our hash rate may differ from how other operators present such a measure.

Generally, miners with a greater hash rate relative to the global Bitcoin network hash rate at a given time will over time, have a greater chance of earning a bitcoin, as
compared to miners with relatively lower total hash rates. Further, with the increase in demand for bitcoin contributing to an increase in computational resources for digital
asset mining, the global network hash rate has increased, and we expect it to continue to increase. As such, our self-mining hash rate provides useful information to investors
because it demonstrates our capacity, and our competitive advantage, for mining bitcoin, which contributes to our digital asset self-mining revenue. Management uses our self-
mining hash rate to monitor our performance and competitive advantage in mining bitcoin as global competition also increases.

Our self-mining hash rate was 17.6 EH/s and 19.4 EH/s as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, representing a 9% decrease year over year.
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Our combined self-mining and customer and related party hosting hash rate decreased 16%, to 20.6 EH/s as of June 30, 2025, from 24.6 EH/s as of June 30, 2024.

Cost of Self-Mining One Bitcoin and Hash Cost

Our profitability with respect to self-mining is heavily dependent upon our cost to mine a bitcoin, calculated during a particular period as the actual cash expense for
power and other mining facility operations cash expenditures attributable to bitcoin self-mined, divided by the total bitcoin self-mined during the period presented. Our cost
efficiency with respect to solving computations on the Bitcoin network to mine bitcoin is reflected in our cash-based hash cost, which is calculated as the actual cash expense
for power and other mining facility operations cash expenditures attributable to bitcoin self-mined, divided by our self-mining hash rate, in terahash. The Company excludes
stock-based compensation and depreciation from calculations of these operating metrics.

Cash Costs per Bitcoin and Cash-Based Hash Cost are key business operating metrics. The cost of self-mining one bitcoin metric provides useful information to
investors as it demonstrates our capacity to profitably mine bitcoin when comparing it to the price of bitcoin, particularly given volatility in energy prices as well as in the price
of bitcoin. Management uses this metric to monitor both our cost efficiency in mining bitcoin as compared to our past performance and the performance of competitors, as well
as our continued ability to profitably mine bitcoin. Similarly, the hash cost provides useful information to investors as it demonstrates our cost efficiency in solving
computations on the Bitcoin network to mine bitcoin. Management uses this information to monitor our cost efficiency in mining bitcoin as compared to our past performance
and the performance of our competitors.

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure defined as our net income (loss), adjusted to eliminate the effect of (i) interest income, interest expense, and other
income (expense), net; (ii) provision for income taxes; (iii) depreciation and amortization; (iv) stock-based compensation expense; (v) Reorganization items, net; (vi) unrealized
fair value adjustment on energy derivatives; (vii) change in fair value of warrant and contingent value rights; (viii) Colocation segment startup costs which are not reflective of
the ongoing costs incurred after startup, (ix) impairment of property, plant and equipment, (x) site demolition costs incurred in connection with the conversion of existing
facilities to colocation data center operations, (xi) post-emergence bankruptcy advisory costs incurred related to reorganization which are not reflective of the ongoing costs
incurred in post-emergence operations, and (xii) certain additional non-cash items that do not reflect the performance of our ongoing business operations. For additional
information, including the reconciliation of net income to Adjusted EBITDA, please refer to the table below. We believe Adjusted EBITDA is an important measure because it
allows management, investors, and our Board of Directors to evaluate and compare our operating results, including our return on capital and operating efficiencies,
from period-to-period by making the adjustments described above. In addition, it provides useful information to investors and others in understanding and evaluating our results
of operations, as well as provides a useful measure for period-to-period comparisons of our business, as it removes the effect of net interest expense, taxes, certain non-
cash items, variable charges and timing differences. Moreover, we have included Adjusted EBITDA in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A because it is a key measurement
used by our management internally to make operating decisions, including those related to operating expenses, evaluate performance, and perform strategic and financial
planning.

The above items are excluded from our Adjusted EBITDA measure because these items are non-cash in nature or because the amount and timing of these items are not
related to the current results of our core business operations which renders evaluation of our current performance, comparisons of performance between periods and
comparisons of our current performance with our competitors less meaningful. However, you should be aware that when evaluating Adjusted EBITDA, we may incur future
expenses similar to those excluded when calculating this measure. Our presentation of this measure should not be construed as an inference that its future results will be
unaffected by unusual items. Further, this non-GAAP financial measure should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for, financial information prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”). We compensate for these limitations by relying primarily on GAAP results and using
Adjusted EBITDA on a supplemental basis. Our computation of Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures computed by other companies
because not all companies calculate this measure in the same fashion. You should review the reconciliation of net income to Adjusted EBITDA below and not rely on any single
financial measure to evaluate our business.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of net loss to Adjusted EBITDA for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 (in thousands):

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 2025 (As Restated) 2024
Adjusted EBITDA
Net loss $ (936,799) $ (902,157) $ (360,548) $ (691,466)
Adjustments:
Interest (income) expense, net (1,185) 14,775 (3,372) 28,862
Income tax expense 158 144 363 350
Depreciation and amortization 18,756 29,477 38,487 58,473
Stock-based compensation expense 24,170 8,494 40,355 7,434
Unrealized fair value adjustment on energy derivatives — (1,465) — (2,262)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,166 (268) 4,172 3,552
Impairment of property, plant and equipment — 97,261 — 97,261
Site conversion demolition costs — — 4,442 —
Loss on debt extinguishment 1,377 120 1,377 170
Colocation startup costs — 4,601 — 4,601
Post-emergence bankruptcy advisory costs 695 (1,380) 1,298 307
Reorganization items, net — — — (111,439)
Change in fair value of warrants and contingent value rights 909,958 796,035 288,494 735,921
Other non-operating expense, net 207 401 364 2,147
Other — 2) — 121
Adjusted EBITDA $ 21,503 $ 46,036 $ 15432 § 134,032

Components of Results of Operations
Revenue

Our revenue consists primarily of digital asset self-mining income, and fees from our digital asset hosting and high-density colocation operations. The Company’s
Colocation operations began during the second quarter of 2024.

* Digital asset self-mining revenue. We operate a digital asset self-mining operation using specialized computers equipped with ASIC chips (known as “miners”) to
solve complex cryptographic algorithms in support of the bitcoin blockchain (in a process known as “solving a block™) in exchange for digital asset rewards (primarily
bitcoin). The Company participates in “mining pools” organized by “mining pool operators” in which we share our mining power (known as “hash rate”) with the hash
rate generated by other miners participating in the pool to earn digital asset rewards. The mining pool operator provides a service that coordinates the computing power
of the independent mining enterprises participating in the mining pool. The pool uses software that coordinates the pool members’ mining power, identifies new block
rewards, records how much hash rate each participant contributes to the pool, and assigns digital asset rewards earned by the pool among its participants in proportion
to the hash rate each participant contributed to the pool in connection with solving a block. Revenues from digital asset self-mining are impacted by volatility in
bitcoin prices, as well as increases in the bitcoin blockchain’s network hash rate resulting from the growth in the overall quantity and quality of miners working to
solve blocks on the bitcoin blockchain and the difficulty index associated with the secure hashing algorithm employed in solving the blocks.

Digital asset hosted mining revenue from customers. Digital asset hosted mining revenue from customers is based on electricity-based consumption contracts with
our customers. Most contracts are renewable, and our customers are generally billed on a fixed and recurring basis each month for the duration of their contract, which
vary from one to three years in length. During the second quarter of 2023, we initiated our first new digital asset hosted mining customer contracts based on
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proceed sharing. Under these new contracts, customers pay for the cost of digital asset hosting and infrastructure, and we share the proceeds that are generated.

* Colocation revenue. Colocation revenue is generated by leasing data center space and providing related services to licensees at our Austin, Texas and Denton, Texas
high-density data centers. These licensing agreements and orders include lease components, nonlease components (such as power delivery, physical security,
maintenance and other billable expenses), as well as noncomponent elements such as taxes. Under these contracts, customers pay fixed payments (based on electric
capacity) and variable payments on a recurring basis. Colocation power fees are passed through to the customer without markup and are included on a gross basis in
Colocation revenue.

Cost of revenue

The Company’s cost of digital asset self-mining and digital asset hosted mining services, primarily consist of electricity costs, salaries, stock-based compensation,
depreciation of property, plant and equipment used to perform mining operations and hosting services and other related costs. Cost of Colocation relates to our Austin, Texas
and Denton, Texas data centers, and primarily consists of facility operations expense, which includes maintenance and lease expense, power fees, payroll and benefits expense
and stock-based compensation expense. Colocation power fees are passed through to the customer without markup and are included on a gross basis in Cost of Colocation
services.

(Increase) decrease in fair value of digital assets

The Company adopted ASU 2023-08 effective January 1, 2024. Under ASU 2023-08, the Company measures digital assets at fair value with the changes in fair value
during the reporting period recognized in change in fair value of digital assets.

Decrease in fair value of energy derivatives

Change in fair value of energy derivatives represents changes in the fair value of the derivative liability related to the energy forward purchase contract to fix a specified
component of the energy price related to forecasted energy purchases at our Cottonwood 1 facility from November 2023 through May 2024.

Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment are measured as the differences between the carrying value of the property, plant and equipment disposed of and
fair value of the consideration received upon disposal.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Company tests property, plant and equipment for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances have occurred that may affect the recoverability or the
estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment may be impaired when the estimated future undiscounted cash flows are less than the
carrying amount of the asset. If that comparison indicates that the asset’s carrying value may not be recoverable, the impairment is measured based on the difference between
the carrying amount and the estimated fair value of the asset. This evaluation is performed at the lowest level for which separately identifiable cash flows exist.

Selling, general and administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses includes compensation, benefits, and other personnel-related expenses, stock-based compensation, rent, Colocation segment
organizational and site startup costs, post-emergence bankruptcy advisor fees related to the reorganization, professional fees, business insurance, auditor fees, bad debt,
amortization of intangibles, franchise taxes, and bank fees. Colocation segment organizational startup costs were primarily consulting costs that were specifically incurred
preparing for and entering into Colocation operation and are not expected to be incurred in the ongoing operations of the Colocation business. Colocation segment site startup
costs are indirect costs associated with the administration of converting and building of future Colocation operating sites, and include compensation and other personnel-related
expenses, including stock-based compensation. Similar costs will be incurred in the future operations of the Colocation segment sites.
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Non-operating expense (income), net:

Non-operating expenses (income), net includes loss (gain) on debt extinguishment, interest expense, net, reorganization items, net, fair value adjustments of convertible
notes, warrants and contingent value rights, and other non-operating (income) expenses, net. Reorganization items, net consists of costs directly associated with the
reorganization during the bankruptcy period, including professional fees (including reimbursed third-party professional fees) and other bankruptcy related costs, negotiated
settlements, satisfaction of allowed claims, and debtor-in-possession finance fees.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense consists of U.S. federal and state income taxes. We maintain a full valuation allowance against our U.S. federal and state net deferred tax assets as
realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income, the timing and amount of which are uncertain and therefore have concluded it is not
more likely than not that we will realize our net deferred tax assets.

Income tax expense consists of federal and state tax expense on our operating activity, and changes to our deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability.
Deferred income tax expense consists of income taxes recorded using the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded
based on the estimated future tax effects of differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of existing assets and liabilities. These differences are measured using the

enacted tax rates that are expected to be in effect when these differences are anticipated to reverse. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance to the extent
management believes it is not more likely than not to be realized.
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Results of Operations for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

The following table sets forth our selected condensed consolidated statements of operations for each of the periods indicated (in thousands).

Revenue:
Digital asset self-mining revenue
Digital asset hosted mining revenue from customers
Colocation revenue
Total revenue
Cost of revenue:
Cost of digital asset self-mining
Cost of digital asset hosted mining services
Cost of Colocation services
Total cost of revenue
Gross profit
(Increase) decrease in fair value of digital assets
Decrease in fair value of energy derivatives
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Selling, general and administrative
Operating loss
Non-operating expense (income), net:
Loss on debt extinguishment
Interest (income) expense, net
Change in fair value of warrants and contingent value rights
Other non-operating expense, net
Total non-operating expense, net
Loss before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net loss
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Three Months Ended June 30,

2025 2024 $ Change

62,424 $ 110,743 (48,319)
5,644 24,840 (19,196)
10,560 5,519 5,041
78,628 141,102 (62,474)
59,589 80,001 (20,412)
4,584 17,393 (12,809)
9,430 4,891 4,539
73,603 102,285 (28,682)
5,025 38,817 (33,792)
(29,797) 584 (30,381)
— 539 (539)

4,166 (268) 4,434
- 97,261 (97,261)
56,940 31,383 25,557
(26,284) (90,682) 64,398
1,377 120 1,257
(1,185) 14,775 (15,960)
909,958 796,035 113,923
207 401 (194)
910,357 811,331 99,026
(936,641) (902,013) (34,628)
158 144 14
(936,799) $ (902,157) (34,642)




Revenue
Three Months Ended June 30,

2025 2024 $ Change
Revenue:
Digital asset self-mining revenue $ 62,424 § 110,743 $ (48,319)
Digital asset hosted mining revenue from customers 5,644 24,840 (19,196)
Colocation revenue 10,560 5,519 5,041
Total revenue $ 78,628 $ 141,102 § (62,474)
Percentage of total revenue:
Digital asset self-mining revenue 80 % 78 %
Digital asset hosted mining revenue from customers 7% 18 %
Colocation revenue 13 % 4%
Total revenue 100 % 100 %

Total revenue decreased by $62.5 million or 44%, to $78.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025, from $141.1 million for the three months ended June 30,
2024, as a result of the factors described below.

Digital asset self-mining revenue decreased by $48.3 million or 44%, to $62.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025, from $110.7 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2024. The year over year decrease in self-mining revenue was driven primarily by:

* 2 62% decrease in bitcoin mined to 634 for the three months ended June 30, 2025, compared to 1,680 for the three months ended June 30, 2024, driven primarily by:
o an approximate net decrease of 12,100 deployed mining units due primarily to the strategic shift to Colocation;
° a9% decrease in self-mining hash rate to 17.6 EH/s for the three months ended June 30, 2025, from 19.4 EH/s for the same period in the prior year; and
o a39% increase in the three month average network difficulty driven by a 61% increase in the three month average network hash rate over prior year.

This decrease in self-mining revenue was partially offset by a 50% increase in the average price of bitcoin to $98,532 for the three months ended June 30, 2025,
compared to $65,677 for the three months ended June 30, 2024.

Total digital asset hosted mining revenue from customers decreased by $19.2 million or 77%, to $5.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025, from $24.8
million for the three months ended June 30, 2024. The decrease in hosted mining revenue from customers was primarily driven by our shift to Colocation operations.

Total Colocation revenue was $10.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025, compared to $5.5 million for the same period in the prior year. This $5.0 million
increase was driven by the completion of the first data hall at our Denton, Texas data center during the second quarter ended June 30, 2025. Colocation operations began during

the quarter ended June 30, 2024, at our Austin, Texas data center.

While we expect to meet all of our fiscal 2025 ready-for-service (“RFS”) dates during fiscal 2025, a variety of weather and construction related delays have moved RFS
dates later in fiscal 2025 than previously planned.

Cost of Revenue

Three Months Ended June 30,

2025 2024 $ Change
Cost of revenue $ 73,603 $ 102,285 $ (28,682)
Gross profit 5,025 38,817 (33,792)
Gross margin 6 % 28 %
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Cost of revenue decreased by $28.7 million or 28%, to $73.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025, from $102.3 million for the three months ended June 30,
2024. As a percentage of total revenue, cost of revenue totaled 94% and 72% for the three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The decrease in cost of revenue
was primarily attributable to:
* a2 $18.5 million decrease in power costs from lower rates and usage;
* a$10.7 million decrease in depreciation expense driven by an increase in the number of miners becoming fully depreciated,
* a$2.2 million decrease in proceed sharing costs due to termination of our proceed sharing arrangements in 2024;
* a$1.3 million decrease in stock-based compensation expense; and

* a$1.2 million decrease in facility operation expenses, due primarily to lower facility maintenance expense and facility equipment and supplies.

This decrease in cost of revenue was partially offset by:

a $3.7 million increase in payroll and benefits due to increases in bonuses and salaries driven primarily by an increase in employee headcount; and
*  a$2.4 million increase in Colocation segment costs, primarily due to a $1.8 million increase in Colocation power fees passed through to the customer and a $0.6
million increase in Colocation rent expense due to the expansion of our Colocation operations.

(Increase) decrease in fair value of digital assets
Three Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 $ Change
(Increase) decrease in fair value of digital assets $ (29,797) $ 584 §$ (30,381)
Percentage of total revenue 38 % —%

The fair value of digital assets increased by $30.4 million to $29.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025, from a decrease of $0.6 million for the three months
ended June 30, 2024, and reflects the increase in the price of bitcoin held during the three months ended June 30, 2025.

Decrease in fair value of energy derivatives

Three Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 $ Change
Decrease in fair value of energy derivatives $ — 3 539 $ (539)
Percentage of total revenue —% — %

Decrease in fair value of energy derivatives was nil for the three months ended June 30, 2025, compared to $0.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024.
Change in fair value of energy derivative was related to the change in fair value of the energy forward purchase contract entered into in November 2023 which expired during
the second quarter 2024.

Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Three Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 $ Change
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment $ 4,166 § 268) $ 4,434
Percentage of total revenue 5% — %

Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment increased by $4.4 million to a loss of $4.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025, from a gain of $0.3
million for the three months ended June 30, 2024. The loss for the three months ended June 30, 2025 was primarily due to losses on disposal of transformers and mining
equipment.
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Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Three Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 $ Change
Impairment of property, plant and equipment — 97,261 (97,261)
Percentage of total revenue —% 69 %

Impairment of property, plant and equipment was $97.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024, reflecting the impairment of fixed assets at sites committed to
conversion from digital asset mining to high-density data center colocation operations during that period. No impairment charges were recorded for the three months ended
June 30, 2025.

Selling, general and administrative

Three Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 $ Change
Selling, general and administrative $ 56,940 $ 31,383  $ 25,557
Percentage of total revenue 72 % 22 %

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $25.6 million or 81%, to $56.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025, from $31.4 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2024. The increase was driven primarily by:

* a$12.3 million increase in stock-based compensation expense;

* a$7.0 million increase in Colocation segment site startup costs which primarily include payroll, benefits, and stock-based compensation for activities related to the
startup of our Colocation segment sites that have transitioned from digital asset site operations and administration;

* a$2.7 million increase in payroll and benefits expense due to increases in bonuses and salaries driven primarily by an increase in employee headcount;
* a$2.2 million increase in professional services; and
* a$2.1 million increase in in post-emergence bankruptcy advisor fees, partially offset by

* a$1.1 million decrease in rent expenses.

Non-operating expense, net

Three Months Ended June 30,

2025 2024 $ Change
Non-operating expense (income), net:
Loss on debt extinguishment $ 1,377 $ 120 $ 1,257
Interest (income) expense, net (1,185) 14,775 (15,960)
Change in fair value of warrants and contingent value rights 909,958 796,035 113,923
Other non-operating expense, net 207 401 (194)
Total non-operating expense, net $ 910,357 $ 811,331 § 99,026

Total non-operating expense, net increased by $99.0 million, to $910.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025, from $811.3 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2024. The increase in total non-operating expense, net was primarily driven by:

*  During the three months ended June 30, 2025, we incurred a $113.9 million increase in Change in fair value of warrant and contingent value rights due to a $9.83 per
share increase in the Company’s stock price to $17.07 per share as of June 30,
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2025, from $7.24 per share as of March 31, 2025, compared to a $5.76 per share increase to $9.30 per share as of June 30, 2024, from $3.54 per share as of March 31,
2024; and

a $16.0 million decrease in Interest (income) expense, net driven primarily by an $9.5 million decrease in interest expense due to lower interest rates during the three
months ended June 30, 2025, and a $6.4 million increase in proceeds from money market funds.
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Segment Total Revenue and Gross Profit

The following table presents total revenue and gross profit by reportable segment for the periods presented (in thousands, except percentages):

Digital Asset Self-Mining Segment
Digital asset self-mining revenue
Cost of digital asset self-mining:

Power fees

Depreciation expense

Employee compensation

Facility operations expense

Other segment items

Total cost of digital asset self-mining

Digital Asset Self-Mining gross profit
Digital Asset Self-Mining gross margin

Digital Asset Hosted Mining Segment
Digital asset hosted mining revenue from customers
Cost of digital asset hosted mining services:

Power fees

Depreciation expense

Employee compensation

Facility operations expense

Other segment items

Total cost of digital asset hosted mining services

Digital Asset Hosted Mining gross profit
Digital Asset Hosted Mining gross margin

Colocation Segment

Colocation revenue:
License fees
Maintenance and other
Licensing revenue
Power fees passed through to customer
Total Colocation revenue
Cost of Colocation services:
Depreciation expense
Employee compensation
Facility operations expense
Other segment items
Cost of licensing revenue
Power fees passed through to customer
Total cost of Colocation services
Colocation gross profit
Colocation licensing gross margin
Colocation gross margin

Consolidated

Consolidated total revenue

Consolidated cost of revenue

Consolidated gross profit

Consolidated gross margin
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Three Months Ended June 30,

2025 2024 $ Change
62,424 S 110,743  $ (48,319)
30,720 41,174 (10,454)
18,058 28,174 (10,116)
8,272 6,038 2,234
2,089 3,231 (1,142)
450 1,384 (934)
59,589 80,001 (20,412)
2835 8 30,742 S (27,907)
5% 28 % (23)%
5644 S 24840 S (19,196)
3,208 11,301 (8,093)
334 1,041 (707)
779 1,640 (861)
220 880 (660)
43 2,531 (2,488)
4,584 17,393 (12,809)
1,060 $ 7447 S (6,387)
19 % 30 % (1%
7010 S 3818 8 3,192
86 38 48
7,096 3,856 3,240
3,464 1,663 1,801
10,560 5,519 5,041
104 14 90
1,148 78 1,070
4336 3,101 1,235
378 35 343
5,966 3,228 2,738
3,464 1,663 1,801
9,430 4,891 4,539
1,130 S 628 S 502
16 % 16 % —%
1% 1% (H%
78,628 S 141,102 $ (62,474)
73,603 S 102,285 § (28,682)
5025 S 38817  § (33,792)
6% 28 % 2%



Digital Asset Self-Mining

For the three months ended June 30, 2025, gross profit in the Digital Asset Self-Mining segment decreased by $27.9 million compared to the three months ended
June 30, 2024, reflecting a Digital Asset Self-Mining segment gross margin of 5% for the three months ended June 30, 2025, compared to 28% for the three months ended
June 30, 2024. The decrease in the Digital Asset Self-Mining segment gross profit was primarily due to a 44% decrease in self-mining revenue driven by:

* a62% decrease in bitcoin mined to 634 for the three months ended June 30, 2025, compared to 1,680 for the three months ended June 30, 2024, driven primarily by:
o an approximate net decrease of 12,100 deployed mining units due primarily to the strategic shift to Colocation;

o a9% decrease in our self-mining hash rate to 17.6 EH/s for the three months ended June 30, 2025, compared to 19.4 EH/s for the three months ended June 30,
2024; and

o a39% increase in the three month average network difficulty driven by a 61% increase in the three month average network hash rate over prior year; partially
offset by

* a50% increase in the average price of bitcoin to $98,532 for the three months ended June 30, 2025, compared to $65,677 for the three months ended June 30, 2024;

This decrease in the digital asset self-mining revenue was partially offset by:
* 2 $20.4 million or 26% decrease in the total cost of digital asset self-mining driven by:
o a$10.5 million decrease in power costs due primarily to lower power rates;

o a$10.1 million or 36% decrease in depreciation expense, which was driven primarily by an approximate net decrease of 12,100 deployed miners during the
current year; and

o a$1.1 million decrease in facility operation expense and a $0.9 million decrease in other segment costs; partially offset by

o a$2.2 million or 37% increase in employee compensation due to increases in bonuses and salaries driven primarily by an increase in employee headcount.

Digital Asset Hosted Mining

For the three months ended June 30, 2025, gross profit in the Digital Asset Hosted Mining segment decreased by $6.4 million compared to the three months ended
June 30, 2024, reflecting a Digital Asset Hosted Mining segment gross margin of 19% for the three months ended June 30, 2025, compared to a gross margin of 30% for the
three months ended June 30, 2024. The decrease in Digital Asset Hosted Mining segment gross margin for the three months ended June 30, 2025, compared to the three months
ended June 30, 2024 was primarily due to:

* a$19.2 million or 77% decrease in the digital asset hosted mining revenue driven primarily by our shift to Colocation operations, partially offset by:
. a $12.8 million or 74% decrease in the total cost of digital asset hosted mining services driven primarily by:

o a$8.1 million decrease in power costs from lower usage driven primarily by our strategic shift to Colocation and lower rates;

o a$2.5 million decrease in other segment costs;

o a$0.9 million decrease in employee compensation: and

o a$0.7 million decrease in depreciation expense and a $0.7 million decrease in facility operation expenses.

For the three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, the top three hosting customers accounted for approximately 100% and 90%, respectively, of the Digital Asset
Hosted Mining’s segment total revenue.

Colocation

For the three months ended June 30, 2025, gross profit in the Colocation segment was $1.1 million compared to $0.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024.
The $0.5 million increase was driven by the completion of the first data hall at our Denton, Texas data center during the second quarter ended June 30, 2025. Colocation
operations began during the quarter ended June 30, 2024, at our Austin, Texas data center. Colocation revenue includes a base license fee as well as the direct pass-through of
power costs to
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our client, with no margin added. Colocation costs consist primarily of lease expense, the direct pass-through of power costs, and direct and indirect facilities operations

expenses, including personnel and benefit costs and stock-based compensation.

A reconciliation of the reportable consolidated segment gross profit to loss before income taxes included in our condensed consolidated statements of operations for the

three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, is as follows (in thousands):

Reportable segment gross profit
(Increase) decrease in fair value of digital assets
Decrease in fair value of energy derivatives
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Selling, general and administrative
Operating loss
Non-operating expense (income), net:
Loss on debt extinguishment
Interest (income) expense, net
Change in fair value of warrants and contingent value rights
Reorganization items, net
Other non-operating expense, net
Total non-operating expense, net
Loss before income taxes
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Three Months Ended June 30,

2025 2024 $ Change

5025 $ 38,817 (33,792)
(29,797) 584 (30,381)
— 539 (539)
4,166 (268) 4,434
— 97,261 (97,261)
56,940 31,383 25,557
(26,284) (90,682) 64,398
1,377 120 1,257
(1,185) 14,775 (15,960)
909,958 796,035 113,923
207 401 (194)
910,357 811,331 99,026
(936,641) $ (902,013) (34,628)




Results of Operations for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

The following table sets forth our selected condensed consolidated statements of operations for each of the periods indicated (in thousands).

Revenue:
Digital asset self-mining revenue
Digital asset hosted mining revenue from customers
Colocation revenue
Total revenue
Cost of revenue:
Cost of digital asset self-mining
Cost of digital asset hosted mining services
Cost of Colocation services
Total cost of revenue
Gross profit
(Increase) decrease in fair value of digital assets
Decrease in fair value of energy derivatives
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Selling, general and administrative
Operating loss
Non-operating expense (income), net:
Loss on debt extinguishment
Interest (income) expense, net
Change in fair value of warrants and contingent value rights
Reorganization items, net
Other non-operating expense, net
Total non-operating expense, net
Loss before income taxes
Income tax expense

Net loss

Six Months Ended June 30,

2025 (As Restated) 2024 $ Change

$ 129,603 $ 260,702 $ (131,099)
9,417 54,172 (44,755)

19,133 5,519 13,614
158,153 320,393 (162,240)
120,759 161,565 (40,806)
6,620 37,474 (30,854)

17,536 4,891 12,645
144,915 203,930 (59,015)
13,238 116,463 (103,225)
(19,109) 41 (19,150)
— 2,757 (2,757)

4,172 3,552 620
== 97,261 (97,261)

101,497 48,307 53,190
(73,322) (35,455) (37,867)

1,377 170 1,207

(3,372) 28,862 (32,234)

288,494 735,921 (447,427)

— (111,439) 111,439

364 2,147 (1,783)

286,863 655,661 (368,798)
(360,185) (691,116) 330,931

363 350 13

$ (360,548) $ (691,466) $ 330,918
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Revenue
Six Months Ended June 30,

2025 2024 $ Change

Revenue:

Digital asset self-mining revenue $ 129,603 $ 260,702  § (131,099)

Digital asset hosted mining revenue from customers 9,417 54,172 (44,755)

Colocation revenue 19,133 5,519 13,614
Total revenue $ 158,153 $ 320,393 $ (162,240)
Percentage of total revenue:

Digital asset self-mining revenue 82 % 81 %

Digital asset hosted mining revenue from customers 6 % 17 %

Colocation revenue 12 % 2%
Total revenue 100 % 100 %

Total revenue decreased by $162.2 million or 51%, to $158.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025, from $320.4 million for the six months ended June 30,
2024, as a result of the factors described below.

Digital asset self-mining revenue decreased by $131.1 million or 50%, to $129.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025, from $260.7 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2024. The year over year decrease in self-mining revenue was driven primarily by:

* 2 70% decrease in bitcoin mined to 1,353 for the six months ended June 30, 2025, compared to 4,505 for the six months ended June 30, 2024, driven primarily by:
o an approximate net decrease of 12,100 deployed mining units due primarily to the strategic shift to Colocation;
e a50% decrease in block rewards as a result of the April 2024 halving;
o a9% decrease in self-mining hash rate to 17.6 EH/s for the six months ended June 30, 2025, from 19.4 EH/s for the same period in the prior year; and
e a43% increase in the six month average network difficulty driven by a 53% increase in the six month average network hash rate over prior year.

This decrease in self-mining revenue was partially offset by a 61% increase in the average price of bitcoin to $96,002 for the six months ended June 30, 2025, compared
to $59,629 for the six months ended June 30, 2024; and

Total digital asset hosted mining revenue from customers decreased by $44.8 million or 83%, to $9.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025, from $54.2 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The decrease in hosted mining revenue from customers was primarily driven by our shift to our Colocation operations.

Total Colocation revenue was $19.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025, compared to $5.5 million for the same period in the prior year. The $13.6 million

increase was driven by the completion of the first data hall at our Denton, Texas data center during the second quarter ended June 30, 2025. Colocation operations began during
the quarter ended June 30, 2024 at our Austin, Texas data center.

Cost of revenue

Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 $ Change
Cost of revenue $ 144,915 $ 203,930 $ (59,015)
Gross profit 13,238 116,463 (103,225)
Gross margin 8% 36 %
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Cost of revenue decreased by $59.0 million or 29%, to $144.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025, from $203.9 million for the six months ended June 30,
2024. As a percentage of total revenue, cost of revenue totaled 92% and 64% for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The decrease in cost of revenue
was primarily attributable to:
* a$45.3 million decrease in power costs from lower rates and usage;
* 2 $20.0 million decrease in depreciation expense driven by an increase in the number of miners becoming fully depreciated;
* a$4.7 million decrease in proceed sharing costs; and

* a$1.4 million decrease in facility operation expenses, due primarily to lower facility maintenance expenses.

This decrease in cost of revenue was partially offset by:

* a$8.7 million increase in Colocation segment costs, primarily a $4.4 million increase in Colocation power fees passed through to the customer and a $4.3 million
increase in Colocation rent expense due to the expansion of our Colocation operation; and

* 2 $6.2 million increase in payroll and benefits due to increases in bonuses and salaries driven primarily by an increase in employee headcount.
(Increase) decrease in fair value of digital assets

Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 $ Change
(Increase) decrease in fair value of digital assets $ (19,109) $ 41 $ (19,150)
Percentage of total revenue 12 % — %

Change in fair value of digital assets was a gain of $19.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025, and reflects the increase in the price of bitcoin held during the
six months ended June 30, 2025.

Decrease in fair value of energy derivatives

Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 $ Change

Decrease in fair value of energy derivatives $ — S 2,757 $ (2,757)
Percentage of total revenue —% 1%

Change in fair value of energy derivatives was nil for the six months ended June 30, 2025, compared to a loss of $2.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024.
Change in fair value of energy derivative was related to the change in fair value of the energy forward purchase contract entered into in November 2023 which expired during
the second quarter 2024.

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 $ Change

Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment $ 4172 § 3,552 §$ 620
Percentage of total revenue 3% 1%

Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment increased by $0.6 million to $4.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025, from $3.6 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2024. The loss for the six months ended June 30, 2025 was primarily due to losses on disposal of transformers and miner equipment. The loss for the six
months ended June 30, 2024 was primarily due to the disposal of mining equipment.
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Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 $ Change
$ — 5 97261 § (97,261)
—% 30 %

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Percentage of total revenue

Impairment of property, plant and equipment was $97.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024, reflecting the impairment of fixed assets at sites committed to
conversion from digital asset mining to high-density data center colocation operations during that period. No impairment charges were recorded for the six months ended June
30, 2025.

Selling, general and administrative

Six Months Ended June 30,

2025 (As Restated) 2024 $ Change
Selling, general and administrative $ 101,497 $ 48,307 $ 53,190
64 % 15%

Percentage of total revenue

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $53.2 million or 110%, to $101.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025, from $48.3 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2024. The increase was driven primarily by:

* a$26.2 million increase in stock-based compensation expense;

* a$14.3 million increase in Colocation segment site startup costs which primarily include payroll, benefits, and stock-based compensation for activities related to the
startup of our Colocation segment sites that have transitioned from digital asset site operations and administration;

* a$5.1 million increase in payroll and benefits expense due to increases in bonuses and salaries driven primarily by an increase in employee headcount;

* a $4.4 million increase in the HPC colocation segment site conversion demolition costs which were improperly capitalized in previously issued financial statements
and reclassified to expense as part of the restatement described in Note 3 — Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements; and

* a $4.4 million increase in professional services, partially offset by

* a$2.1 million decrease in rent expenses.

Non-operating expense, net

Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 $ Change
Non-operating expense (income), net:
Loss on debt extinguishment $ 1,377 $ 170 $ 1,207
Interest (income) expense, net (3,372) 28,862 (32,234)
Change in fair value of warrants and contingent value rights 288,494 735,921 (447,427)
Reorganization items, net — (111,439) 111,439
Other non-operating expense, net 364 2,147 (1,783)
$ 286,863 $ 655,661 $ (368,798)

Total non-operating expense, net
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Total non-operating expense, net decreased by $368.8 million, to $286.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025, from total non-operating income, net of $655.7
million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The decrease in total non-operating expense, net was primarily driven by:

*  During the six months ended June 30, 2025, we incurred a $447.4 million decrease in Change in fair value of warrant and contingent value rights due to a $3.02 per
share increase in the Company’s stock price to $17.07 per share as of June 30, 2025, from $14.05 per share as of December 31, 2024, compared to a $5.86 increase in
stock price to $9.30 as of June 30, 2024, from $3.44 as of January 23, 2024, the date the Company emerged from bankruptcy; and

* a$32.2 million decrease in Interest (income) expense, net driven primarily by an $18.2 million decrease in interest expense due to lower interest rates during the six
months ended June 30, 2025, and a $14.4 million increase in proceeds from money market funds.

This decrease was partially offset by $111.4 million in Reorganization items, net incurred during the six months ended June 30, 2024 with no related activity during the
same period in the current year. Reorganization items, net consisted of costs directly associated with the reorganization during the bankruptcy period, including professional
fees (including reimbursed third-party professional fees) and other bankruptcy related costs, negotiated settlements, satisfaction of allowed claims, and debtor-in-possession
finance fees.
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Segment Total Revenue and Gross Profit

The following table presents total revenue and gross profit by reportable segment for the periods presented (in thousands, except percentages):

Digital Asset Self-Mining Segment
Digital asset self-mining revenue
Cost of digital asset self-mining:

Power fees

Depreciation expense

Employee compensation

Facility operations expense

Other segment items

Total cost of digital asset self-mining

Digital Asset Self-Mining gross profit
Digital Asset Self-Mining gross margin

Digital Asset Hosted Mining Segment
Digital asset hosted mining revenue from customers
Cost of digital asset hosted mining services:

Power fees

Depreciation expense

Employee compensation

Facility operations expense

Other segment items

Total cost of digital asset hosted mining services

Digital Asset Hosted Mining gross profit
Digital Asset Hosted Mining gross margin

Colocation Segment

Colocation revenue:
License fees
Maintenance and other
Licensing revenue
Power fees passed through to customer
Total Colocation revenue
Cost of Colocation services:
Depreciation expense
Employee compensation
Facility operations expense
Other segment items
Cost of licensing revenue
Power fees passed through to customer
Total cost of Colocation services
Colocation gross profit
Colocation licensing gross margin
Colocation gross margin

Consolidated

Consolidated total revenue

Consolidated cost of revenue

Consolidated gross profit

Consolidated gross margin

64

Six Months Ended June 30,

2025 2024 $ Change
129,603  $ 260,702 $ (131,099)
61,039 86,157 (25,118)
37,317 55,652 (18,335)
15,607 10,718 4,889
5,369 6,181 (812)
1,427 2,857 (1,430
120,759 161,565 (40,806)
8,844 § 99,137 $ (90,293)
7% 38% 3%
9417 8 54,172 S (44,755)
4,574 24,795 (20,221)
479 2311 (1,832)
1,110 3,044 (1,934)
368 1,765 (1,397)
89 5,559 (5,470)
6,620 37,474 (30,854)
2,797 8 16,698  $ (13,901)
30 % 31% 1%
13,005 $ 3818 $ 9,187
78 38 40
13,083 3,856 9,227
6,050 1,663 4,387
19,133 5,519 13,614
171 14 157
2,442 78 2,364
8,187 3,101 5,086
686 35 651
11,486 3,228 8,258
6,050 1,663 4,387
17,536 4,891 12,645
1,597 $ 628 $ 969
12 % 16 % @)%
8% 1% 3)%
158,153  § 320,393 $ (162,240)
144915 § 203,930 $ (59,015)
13238 § 116,463 § (103,225)
8% 36% (28)%



Digital Asset Self-Mining

For the six months ended June 30, 2025, gross profit in the Digital Asset Self-Mining segment decreased by $90.3 million compared to the six months ended June 30,
2024, reflecting a Digital Asset Self-Mining segment gross margin of 7% for the six months ended June 30, 2025, compared to 38% for the six months ended June 30, 2024.
The decrease in the Digital Asset Self-Mining segment gross profit was primarily due to a 50% decrease in self-mining revenue driven by:

* a70% decrease in bitcoin mined to 1,353 for the six months ended June 30, 2025, compared to 4,505 for the six months ended June 30, 2024, driven primarily by:
o an approximate net decrease of 12,100 deployed mining units due primarily to the strategic shift to Colocation;
o a50% decrease in block rewards as a result of the April 2024 halving;

o a9% decrease in our self-mining hash rate to 17.6 EH/s for the six months ended June 30, 2025, compared to 19.4 EH/s for the six months ended June 30,
2024; and

o a43% increase in the six month average network difficulty driven by a 53% increase in the six month average network hash rate over prior year; partially
offset by

* a61% increase in the average price of bitcoin to $96,002 for the six months ended June 30, 2025, compared to $59,629 for the six months ended June 30, 2024;

This decrease in the digital asset self-mining revenue was partially offset by:
* a2 $40.8 million or 25% decrease in the total cost of digital asset self-mining driven by:
o a$25.1 million decrease in power costs due primarily to lower power rates; and

o a$18.3 million or 33% decrease in depreciation expense, which was driven primarily by an approximate net decrease of 12,100 deployed miners during the
current year; partially offset by

o a$4.9 million or 46% increase in employee compensation due to increases in bonuses and salaries driven primarily by an increase in employee headcount.

Digital Asset Hosted Mining

For the six months ended June 30, 2025, gross profit in the Digital Asset Hosted Mining segment decreased by $13.9 million compared to the six months ended June 30,
2024, reflecting a Digital Asset Hosted Mining segment gross margin of 30% for the six months ended June 30, 2025, compared to a gross margin of 31% for the six months
ended June 30, 2024. The decrease in Digital Asset Hosted Mining segment gross margin for the six months ended June 30, 2025, compared to the six months ended June 30,
2024 was primarily due to:

* a $44.8 million or 83% decrease in the digital asset hosted mining revenue driven primarily by our shift to Colocation operations, partially offset by:
*  a$30.9 million or 82% decrease in the total cost of digital asset hosted mining services driven primarily by:

o a$20.2 million decrease in power costs from lower usage driven primarily by our strategic shift to Colocation and lower rates;

o a$5.5 million decrease in other segment costs; and

o a$1.8 million decrease in depreciation expense and a $1.9 million decrease in employee compensation.

For the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, the top three hosting customers accounted for approximately 96% and 87%, respectively, of the Digital Asset Hosted
Mining’s segment total revenue.

Colocation

For the six months ended June 30, 2025, gross profit in the Colocation segment was $1.6 million compared to $0.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The
$1.0 million increase was driven by the completion of the first data hall at our Denton, Texas data center during the second quarter ended June 30, 2025. Colocation operations
began during the quarter ended June 30, 2024 at our Austin, Texas data center. Colocation revenue includes a base license fee as well as the direct pass-through of power costs
to our client, with no margin added. Colocation costs consist primarily of lease expense, the direct pass-through of power costs, and direct and indirect facilities operations
expenses, including personnel and benefit costs and stock-based compensation.
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A reconciliation of the reportable segment gross profit to loss before income taxes included in our condensed consolidated statements of operations for the six months
ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, is as follows (in thousands):

Six Months Ended June 30,

2025 (As Restated) 2024 $ Change

Reportable segment gross profit $ 13,238 $ 116,463 $ (103,225)
(Increase) decrease in fair value of digital assets (19,109) 41 (19,150)
Decrease in fair value of energy derivatives — 2,757 (2,757)
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,172 3,552 620
Impairment of property, plant and equipment — 97,261 (97,261)
Selling, general and administrative 101,497 48,307 53,190
Operating loss (73,322) (35,455) (37,867)
Non-operating expense (income), net:

Loss on debt extinguishment 1,377 170 1,207

Interest (income) expense, net (3,372) 28,862 (32,234)

Reorganization items, net — (111,439) 111,439

Change in fair value of warrants and contingent value rights 288,494 735,921 (447,427)

Other non-operating expense, net 364 2,147 (1,783)
Total non-operating expense, net 286,863 655,661 (368,798)
Loss before income taxes $ (360,185) $ (691,116) $ 330,931

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources and Uses of Cash

We finance our operations primarily through debt issuances, cash generated from operations, including the sale of self-mined bitcoin and fees from leasing Colocation
segment data center space, equipment financing arrangements, and sales of equity securities.

We have assessed our current and expected operating and capital expenditure requirements and our current and expected sources of liquidity, and have determined, based
on our forecasted financial results and financial condition as of June 30, 2025, that our operating cash flows, existing cash balances, and continued access to debt markets will
be sufficient to satisfy our cash requirements over the next twelve months and beyond.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash and Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

June 30, December 31,
2025 2024 $ Change
Cash and cash equivalents $ 581,345 $ 836,197 $ (254,852)
Restricted cash — 783 (783)
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 581,345 § 836,980 $ (255,635)

As of June 30, 2025, the Company had no restricted cash. As of December 31, 2024, restricted cash consisted of cash held in escrow to pay for construction and
development activities.
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The following table summarizes our cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash flows for the periods indicated.

Six Months Ended June 30,

2025 (As Restated) 2024
(in thousands)

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash — beginning of period $ 836,980 $ 69,709
Net cash provided by (used in)

Operating activities (11,041) 23,378

Investing activities (208,624) (35,154)

Financing activities (35,970) 39,172
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash - end of period $ 581,345 §$ 97,105

Our principal uses of cash in recent periods have been funding our operations and investing in capital expenditures.

Operating Activities

Changes in net cash from operating activities results primarily from cash received from hosting customers payments for power fees and equipment purchases. Other
drivers of the changes in net cash from operating activities include research and development costs, sales and marketing costs and general and administrative expenses
(including personnel expenses and fees for professional services) and interest payments on debt.

Net cash used in operating activities was $11.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and net cash provided by operating activities was $23.4 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2024. The decrease in net cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to a decrease in $132.0 million from our bitcoin holding strategy and a
decrease of $69.6 million in net income before the effects of non-cash adjustments. The decrease in net cash provided by operating activities was offset by an increase of $167.2
million from operating assets and liabilities driven primarily by an increase in deferred revenue from colocation services of $131.3 million.

Investing Activities

Our net cash used in investing activities consists primarily of purchases of property, plant and equipment. Net cash used in investing activities for the six months ended
June 30, 2025 and 2024, was $208.6 million and $35.2 million, respectively. Purchases of property, plant, and equipment were $205.3 million during the six months ended
June 30, 2025. Of those purchases, $176.1 million related to the Colocation segment and $29.2 million related to the digital asset mining segments. Prepaid base license fees of
$131.3 million recognized as deferred revenue during the six months ended June 30, 2025 and included in the operating activities above, funded a portion of the property, plant,
and equipment purchases for the Colocation segment. The increase in net cash used in investing activities was further driven by a $5.0 million purchase of a strategic equity
investment.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities consists of principal payments on debt, including notes payable and finance leases, net of proceeds from stock issuances.

Net cash used in financing activities was $36.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025, compared to net cash provided of $39.2 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2024. The change was primarily driven by $26.9 million in debt extinguishment payments made during the current period and the absence of $55.0 million in proceeds

from the issuance of common stock and a $20.0 million draw from the exit facility that occurred in the prior-year period. The decreases were partially offset by a $19.7 million
reduction in principal payments on debt.
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Future Commitments and Contractual Obligations

Our material cash commitments from known contractual and other obligations consist primarily of obligations for long-term debt and related interest, leases for property
and equipment, and capital expenditures related to the conversion of a significant portion of our data centers to high-density colocation operations. Certain amounts included in
our contractual obligations as of June 30, 2025, are based on our estimates and assumptions about these obligations, including their duration, anticipated actions by third parties
and other factors.

For more information regarding the Company’s future commitments and contractual obligations refer to Notes 6 — Leases, 7 — Convertible and Other Notes Payable
and 10 — Commitments and Contingencies to our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with GAAP and the Company’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and
operating results require the Company’s management to make judgments, assumptions and estimates that affect the amounts reported. Note 2 — Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies to our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements in Part I. Item 1 — “Financial Statements” of this Amendment and in Part II. Item 8 to our
audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes of Amendment No. 1 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K, which was filed with the United States Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on March 2, 2026, describe the significant accounting policies and methods used in the preparation of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements. There have been no material changes to the Company’s critical accounting estimates since Amendment No. 1 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2024, which was filed with the SEC on March 2, 2026.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures (Restated)

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of June 30, 2025.

Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded at the time the Company filed the Original Filing that the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 30, 2025.

Subsequent to the filing of the Original Filing, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer reevaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures and concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of June 30, 2025 because of the material weakness in our internal
control over financial reporting described below.

Our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control
objectives. Our management recognizes that any control system, no matter how well designed and operated, is based upon certain judgments and assumptions and cannot
provide absolute assurance that its objectives will be met. Similarly, an evaluation of controls cannot provide absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will
not occur or that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected.

Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Management identified the following material weakness in internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, which continued to exist as of June 30,
2025:

We did not effectively operate controls to account for intended demolition of building and infrastructure assets, including evaluation of impairment, related to the
conversion of facilities from digital asset mining operations to HPC colocation infrastructure due to insufficient complement of trained personnel.

This material weakness resulted in material misstatements to property, plant and equipment on the condensed consolidated balance sheet and impairment of property,
plant and equipment on the condensed consolidated statement of operations, which were corrected prior to the issuance of the restated condensed consolidated financial
statements as of and for the quarter ended June 30, 2025, and resulted in the restatement of previously issued annual and interim financial statements. The control deficiency
described above created a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the condensed consolidated financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis, we concluded the deficiency represents a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting and our internal control over financial reporting was not
effective as of December 31, 2024, which continued as of June 30, 2025.

Remediation Plan for the Material Weakness

With the oversight of senior management and the Audit Committee, we are in the process of developing and implementing a remediation plan to address the material
weakness. Elements of the plan include the following:

* implementing additional training for accounting personnel on the evaluation of novel transactions related to property, plant and equipment.

* implementing additional levels of management review and oversight, including consultation with external technical accounting resources as necessary, over significant
accounting conclusions related to property, plant and equipment, including those involving the application of accounting guidance to novel or non-routine transactions.

We believe our remediation plan will be sufficient to remediate the material weakness. However, the material weakness will not be considered remediated until

management completes the design and implementation of the actions described above and the controls operate for a sufficient period of time, and management has concluded,
through testing, that these controls are effective. As we test our
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internal controls over financial reporting, we may determine that additional measures or modifications to the remediation plan are necessary or appropriate.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the
quarter ended June 30, 2025 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as the
circumstances that led to the restatement in the Company’s previously issued consolidated financial statements had not yet been identified.

Part II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the factors discussed elsewhere in the Original Filing, the following risks and uncertainties could materially or adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or
that we currently deem immaterial may also materially or adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Except for the risk factor below titled, “We have identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting, which has resulted in the ineffectiveness
of our internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Amendment. While we are working to
remediate the identified material weakness, we cannot assure you whether or when we will be successful in remediating the identified material weakness or that additional
material weaknesses will not be identified in the future. Failure to maintain an effective system of internal control may result in material misstatements of our financial
statements or cause us to fail to meet our periodic reporting obligations.”, this Item 1A. Risk Factors section has not been updated to reflect developments occurring
subsequent to the Original Filing.

During fiscal year 2024, our “Colocation” segment was referred to as “HPC Hosting,” and, as such, any risk factors referring to the “HPC Hosting” segment or “HPC
hosting” business should be read as being applicable to our “Colocation” segment and “high-density colocation” business.

Risks Related to our Businesses and Industries

We have identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting, which has resulted in the ineffectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Amendment. While we are working to remediate the identified
material weakness, we cannot assure you whether or when we will be successful in remediating the identified material weakness or that additional material weaknesses will
not be identified in the future. Failure to maintain an effective system of internal control may result in material misstatements of our financial statements or cause us to
fail to meet our periodic reporting obligations.

In connection with the preparation of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2025, management identified the following material
weakness in our internal control over financial reporting, which existed as of December 31, 2024: the Company did not effectively operate controls to account for intended
demolition of building and infrastructure assets, including evaluation of impairment, related to the conversion of facilities from digital asset mining operations to HPC
colocation infrastructure due to insufficient complement of trained personnel.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. As described in Note 3 — Restatement of Previously
Issued Financial Statements in Item 1 of Part I - Financial Information, to the restated condensed consolidated financial statements included in this Amendment, this material
weakness resulted in the restatement of our previously issued consolidated financial statements as of and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2024, the year ended December 31, 2024, the three months ended March 31, 2025, the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, and the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2025.

With the oversight of our senior management and Audit Committee, we have instituted plans to remediate the material weakness and will continue to take remediation
steps, including (i) implementing additional training for accounting personnel on the evaluation of novel transactions related to property, plant and equipment, and (ii)
implementing additional levels of management review and oversight, including consultation with external technical accounting resources as necessary, over significant
accounting
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conclusions related to property, plant and equipment, including those involving the application of accounting guidance to novel or non-routine transactions.

While we believe the measures described above will remediate the material weakness identified and strengthen our internal control over financial reporting, we cannot
assure you that the measures we have taken to date, or any measures we may take in the future, will be sufficient to remediate the control deficiencies that have led to a material
weakness in our internal control over financial reporting or that they will prevent or avoid potential future material weaknesses.

If our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting are not effective, the reliability of our financial reporting, investor confidence
and the value of our securities could be materially and adversely affected. Any failure to implement and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting could result
in additional errors in our financial statements that could require further restatement, cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations, and cause investors to lose confidence in
our reported financial information, any of which could adversely affect the trading price of our securities.

For more information relating to our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting, the material weakness and our remediation
efforts, see Part I, Item 4., Controls and Procedures, of this Amendment.
Risks Related to Our Proposed Merger with CoreWeave

The consummation of the Merger is contingent upon the satisfaction of a number of conditions that may be outside of our or CoreWeave’s control and that we and
CoreWeave may be unable to satisfy or obtain, or which may delay the consummation of the Merger or result in the imposition of conditions that could reduce the
anticipated benefits from the Merger or cause the parties to abandon the Merger.

Consummation of the Merger is contingent upon the satisfaction of a number of conditions, some of which are beyond our and CoreWeave’s control, including, among
others:

« the adoption of the Merger Agreement by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of Company common stock entitled to
vote (the “Company Stockholder Approval”);

« the expiration or termination of the waiting period (and any extension thereof, including any commitment to, or agreement with, any governmental body to delay the
consummation of, or not to consummate before a certain date, the Merger) applicable to the Merger under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976,
as amended (the “HSR Act”);

« the effectiveness of the registration statement on Form S-4 to be filed by CoreWeave pursuant to which the shares of CoreWeave Class A common stock to be issued in
connection with the Merger will be registered with the SEC, and the absence of any stop order suspending such effectiveness or proceeding for the purpose of
suspending such effectiveness being pending before the SEC;

« the absence of any injunction or other order issued by a governmental body or applicable law enjoining, restraining, preventing or prohibiting or making illegal the
consummation of the Merger; and

« the approval for listing on Nasdaq of the shares of CoreWeave Class A common stock to be issued in connection with the Merger.

Each party’s obligation to complete the Merger is also subject to certain additional conditions, including:
» the other party having complied in all material respects with its pre-closing obligations and covenants under the Merger Agreement;
« the accuracy of the representations and warranties of the other party in the Merger Agreement (subject to certain materiality qualifiers); and
» the absence of a material adverse effect with respect to the other party.
These conditions to the closing of the Merger may not be fulfilled in a timely manner or at all, and, accordingly, the Merger may not be completed. In addition, each of
CoreWeave and the Company may terminate the Merger Agreement under certain specified circumstances, including but not limited to, if (1) if any order has become final and
non-appealable or there is a law, in each case having the effect of permanently enjoining the consummation of the Merger or making the Merger illegal or otherwise prohibited;

(2) if the consummation of the Merger does not occur on or before April 7, 2026; (3) if the Company Stockholder Approval is not obtained at the meeting of the Company’s
stockholders convened to obtain the Company Stockholder Approval; or (4) if the other
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party breaches its representations, warranties or covenants in the Merger Agreement in a way that would entitle the party seeking to terminate the Merger Agreement not to
consummate the Merger, subject to the right of the breaching party to cure the breach. In addition, prior to receiving approval of the Merger Agreement by the Company’s
stockholders, (i) CoreWeave may terminate the Merger Agreement if our Board of Directors has changed its recommendation in favor of the Merger and (ii) the Company may
terminate the Merger Agreement to enter into a definitive agreement with respect to a Superior Proposal (as defined in the Merger Agreement). Upon the termination of the
Merger Agreement under specified circumstances, including, among others, the termination by CoreWeave in the event of a Change of Recommendation (as defined in the
Merger Agreement) by our Board of Directors, the Company would be required to pay CoreWeave a termination fee of $270 million.

As a condition to granting the required clearance under the HSR Act, the Federal Trade Commission may impose limitations or costs, require divestitures or place
restrictions on the conduct of the combined company after the closing of the Merger; provided, however, that CoreWeave and its subsidiaries will not be required to take or
agree to take (and neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries will take, offer to take, or otherwise agree to without CoreWeave’s prior written consent) any such action that
would
reasonably be expected to, either individually or in the aggregate, be material to the business, financial condition or results of operations of CoreWeave, the Company and their
respective subsidiaries, taken as a whole; provided, however, that for this purpose, CoreWeave, the Company and their respective subsidiaries, taken as a whole, will be deemed
a consolidated group of entities of the size and scale of a hypothetical company that is 100% of the size of the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, as of the date of
the Merger Agreement. Such conditions or changes and the process of obtaining the required clearance under the HSR Act could, among other things, have the effect of
delaying completion of the Merger or of imposing additional costs or limitations on the combined company following the Merger, any of which may have an adverse effect on
the combined company following the Merger.

We and CoreWeave may also be subject to lawsuits challenging the Merger, and adverse rulings in these lawsuits may delay or prevent the Merger from being completed
or require us or CoreWeave to incur significant costs to defend or settle these lawsuits. Any delay in completing the Merger could cause us not to realize, or to be delayed in
realizing, some or all of the benefits that we expect to achieve if the Merger is successfully completed within the expected time frame.

If the Merger is not completed, or if there are significant delays in completing the Merger, the trading prices of our common stock and our future business and financial
results could be negatively affected, and we may be subject to several risks, including the following:

* negative reactions from the financial markets, including declines in the prices of our common stock due to the fact that current prices may reflect a market assumption
that the Merger will be completed;

* having to pay certain significant costs relating to the Merger; and

+ the attention of our management will have been diverted to the Merger rather than our own operations and pursuit of other opportunities that could have been
beneficial to us.

Failure to realize the anticipated benefits of the Merger, delay in realizing those benefits, or significant challenges in integrating the Company with CoreWeave
could have an adverse effect on the price of CoreWeave Class A common stock that Company stockholders will own following the completion of the Merger.

We and CoreWeave have operated and, until the completion of the Merger, will continue to operate, independently. The success of the Merger, including anticipated
benefits and cost savings, will depend, in part, on our and CoreWeave’s ability to successfully integrate our respective operations in a manner that results in various benefits and
that does not materially disrupt existing business and strategic relationships or result in a loss of customers. The process of integrating operations could result in a loss of key
personnel or cause an interruption of, or loss of momentum in, the activities of one or more of the combined company’s businesses. Inconsistencies in standards, controls,
procedures and policies could adversely affect the combined company. The diversion of management’s attention and any delays or difficulties encountered in connection with
the Merger and the integration of the Company and CoreWeave’s operations could have an adverse effect on the business, financial condition, operating results and prospects of
the combined company. If the Company and CoreWeave experience difficulties in the integration process, including those listed above, we may not fully realize the anticipated
benefits of the Merger in a timely manner or at all, and the price of CoreWeave Class A common stock to be issued to Company stockholders in the Merger could be adversely
affected.

Uncertainty about the Merger may adversely affect relationships with our customers, suppliers, service providers, partners, consultants, and other business
counterparties, whether or not the Merger is completed.

In response to the announcement of the Merger, our existing or prospective customers, suppliers, service providers, partners, consultants, and other business
counterparties may:
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* delay, defer, or cease entering into a business relationship with us or the combined company;
* terminate their relationships with us or the combined company;
* delay or defer other decisions concerning us or the combined company; or

»  seek to change the terms on which they do business with us or the combined company.
Any such delays or changes to terms could materially harm our business or, if the Merger is completed, the business of the combined company.

Losses of customers, suppliers, service providers, consultants or other important strategic relationships could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Such adverse effects could also be exacerbated by a delay in the completion of the Merger for any reason, including delays associated with
obtaining the requisite regulatory approval under the HSR Act or the approval of our stockholders.

As a result of the Merger, our current and prospective employees could experience uncertainty about their future with us or the combined company. As a result, key
employees may depart because of issues relating to such uncertainty or a desire not to remain with CoreWeave following the completion of the Merger.

As a result of the Merger, our current and prospective employees could experience uncertainty about their future with us or the combined company, or decide that they do
not want to continue their employment with the combined company. As a result, key employees may depart because of issues relating to such uncertainty or a desire not to
remain with CoreWeave following the completion of the Merger. Losses of officers, key employees or other employees could materially harm our business, results of
operations and financial condition. Such adverse effects could also be exacerbated by a delay in the completion of the Merger for any reason, including delays associated with
obtaining requisite regulatory approvals or the approval of our stockholders. We may also experience challenges in hiring new employees during the pendency of the Merger, or
if the Merger Agreement is terminated, which could harm our ability to grow our business, execute on our business plans or enhance our operations. If the Merger is
consummated, the combined company may be less attractive to current and prospective employees, which could harm the business and prospects of the combined company.

Restrictions under the Merger Agreement may adversely affect our business and operations.

Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, we are subject to certain restrictions on the conduct of our business prior to completing the Merger which may adversely
affect our ability to execute certain of our business strategies, including, but not limited to, making material acquisitions, disposing of material assets, entering into material
agreements, making capital expenditures in excess of specified amounts, issuing additional capital stock or other equity securities, or incurring additional indebtedness (in each
case, subject to certain exceptions). These limitations may have adverse effects on our existing or planned relationships with our existing or prospective customers, suppliers,
service providers, consultants and employees, which could adversely affect our business and operations prior to the completion of the Merger.

Because the consideration to be received by our stockholders in connection with the Merger will include a fixed number of shares of Class A common stock of
CoreWeave, and the market price of such shares has fluctuated and will continue to fluctuate, our stockholders cannot be sure of the value of the consideration they will
receive in the Merger. Furthermore, with respect to the fairness of such consideration from a financial point of view, (i) the separate fairness opinions received by the
Company’s board of directors from each of our financial advisors in connection with the signing of the Merger Agreement only speak as of the date of the Merger
Agreement and not as of any other date and (ii) under Delaware law, the Company’s stockholders are not entitled to an appraisal of the fair value of their shares in
connection with the Merger.

Under the Merger Agreement, at the effective time of the Merger, each share of Company common stock (other than each share of Company common stock held in
treasury or held or owned by the Company, CoreWeave or Miami Merger Sub I, Inc. immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger) issued and outstanding immediately
prior to the effective time of the Merger will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive 0.1235 fully paid and non-assessable shares of CoreWeave Class A common
stock. The market value of the consideration our stockholders will receive in the Merger will therefore fluctuate with the market price of CoreWeave Class A common stock.
The implied value of the merger consideration to our stockholders has fluctuated since the date of the announcement of the Merger Agreement and will continue to fluctuate
until the date the Merger is completed, which could occur a considerable amount of time after the date hereof.

CoreWeave’s share price changes may result from a variety of factors, including, among others, general market and economic conditions, changes in CoreWeave’s and
our respective businesses, operations and prospects, risks inherent in the respective
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businesses, changes in market assessments of the likelihood that the Merger will be completed and/or the value that may be generated by the Merger and changes with respect
to expectations regarding the timing of the Merger and regulatory considerations. Many of these factors are beyond both our and CoreWeave’s control. You are urged to obtain
current market quotations for both the Company and CoreWeave common stock traded on the Nasdaq (trading symbols “CORZ” and “CRWV”, respectively).

Furthermore, the Company’s board of directors has received the separate opinions from each of our financial advisors in connection with the signing of the Merger
Agreement, each to the effect that, as of the date of such opinion and based upon and subject to the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and
qualifications and limitations set forth therein, the exchange ratio in the Merger Agreement is fair from a financial point of view to the holders of shares of Core Scientific
common stock (other than the cancelled shares). Changes in the operations and prospects of the Company or CoreWeave, general market and economic conditions and other
factors that may be beyond the control of the Company or CoreWeave, and on which our financial advisors’ opinions were based, may significantly alter the value of the
Company or CoreWeave or the prices of the shares of Company common stock or CoreWeave common stock by the time the Merger is completed. The opinions do not speak
as of the time the Merger will be completed or as of any date other than the date of each such opinion. Because the Company does not currently anticipate asking its financial
advisors to provide updated fairness opinions, the opinions will not address the fairness of the Merger Consideration from a financial point of view at the time the Merger is
completed.

Finally, under Delaware law, the holders of Company common stock are not entitled to an appraisal of the fair value of their shares in connection with the Merger.
Appraisal rights are statutory rights that enable stockholders to dissent from certain extraordinary transactions, such as certain mergers, and to demand that the corporation pay
the fair value for their shares as determined by a court in a judicial proceeding instead of receiving the consideration offered to stockholders in connection with the applicable
transaction. Under Delaware law, appraisal rights are not available for the shares of any class or series if the shares of the class or series are listed on a national securities
exchange or held of record by more than 2,000 holders on the record date, unless the stockholders receive in exchange for their shares anything other than shares of stock of the
surviving or resulting corporation or of any other corporation that is publicly listed or held by more than 2,000 holders of record, cash proceeds from the sale of fractional
shares or fractional depositary receipts or any combination of the foregoing. Shares of Company common stock are listed on the Nasdaq, and the Company’s stockholders will
receive CoreWeave Class A common stock pursuant to the Merger Agreement and cash proceeds from the sale of fractional shares. Approval for the listing of the shares of
CoreWeave common stock on the Nasdaq is a condition to completion of the Merger.

The Merger Agreement contains provisions that could discourage or deter a potential competing acquirer from making a favorable alternative transaction proposal
to the Company and, in specified circumstances, could require us to pay substantial termination fees to CoreWeave.

Under the Merger Agreement, the Company is subject to “no-shop” restrictions and is not permitted, subject to certain exceptions set forth in the Merger Agreement, to
initiate, solicit or knowingly encourage or facilitate any inquiries or the making of any proposal or offer by or with a third party with respect to an acquisition proposal and to
furnish nonpublic information to, or engage in discussions or negotiations with, a third party interested in pursuing an alternative business combination transaction. Further, our
Board of Directors is required to recommend that our stockholders vote in favor of the Merger, subject to exceptions for superior proposals and other situations where failure to
effect a recommendation change would be inconsistent with the Board of Directors’ fiduciary duties. Upon the termination of the Merger Agreement under specified
circumstances, including, among others, the termination by CoreWeave in the event of a Change of Recommendation (as defined in the Merger Agreement) by our Board of
Directors, the Company would be required to pay CoreWeave a termination fee of $270 million. Such provisions of the Merger Agreement could discourage or deter a third
party that may be willing to pay more than CoreWeave for the Company’s outstanding common stock from considering or proposing such an acquisition of the Company.

Litigation may arise in connection with the Merger, which could be costly, prevent consummation of the Merger, divert management’s attention and otherwise
materially harm our business.

Securities class action lawsuits and derivative lawsuits are often brought against public companies that have entered into merger agreements and/or their directors and
officers. A negative outcome in any such lawsuit could result in substantial costs to the Company, including any costs associated with the indemnification of directors and
officers. Regardless of the outcome of any future litigation related to the Merger, such litigation may be time-consuming and expensive and may distract our management from
running the day-to-day operations of their business. If the Merger is not consummated for any reason, litigation could be filed in connection with the failure to consummate the
Merger. Any litigation related to the Merger may result in negative publicity or an unfavorable impression of us, which could adversely affect the price of Company common
stock, impair our ability to recruit or retain employees, damage our business relationships or otherwise materially harm our operations and financial performance.
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Shares of CoreWeave Class A common stock received by our stockholders as a result of the Merger will have different rights from shares of Company common stock.

Upon consummation of the Merger, our stockholders will no longer be stockholders of the Company, but will instead become stockholders of CoreWeave, and their
rights as stockholders will be governed by the CoreWeave certificate of incorporation and bylaws. The terms of the CoreWeave certificate of incorporation and bylaws may be
materially different than the terms of the Company’s certificate of incorporation and bylaws, which currently govern the rights of our stockholders.

The multi-class structure of CoreWeave common stock has the effect of concentrating voting power with CoreWeave’s co-founders.

CoreWeave’s Class B common stock has ten votes per share, CoreWeave’s Class A common stock has one vote per share and CoreWeave’s Class C common stock has
no votes per share. As of March 31, 2025, Michael Intrator, CoreWeave’s Chief Executive Officer, President, and Chairman of CoreWeave’s board of directors, Brian Venturo,
CoreWeave’s Chief Strategy Officer, and Brannin McBee, CoreWeave’s Chief Development Officer (together, the “CoreWeave Co-Founders”) collectively hold all of the
issued and outstanding shares of CoreWeave’s Class B common stock. Because of the ten-to-one voting ratio between CoreWeave’s Class B common stock and Class A
common stock, the CoreWeave Co-Founders collectively continue to control a significant percentage of the combined voting power of CoreWeave’s common stock, which
voting power may increase over time upon the exercise or settlement and exchange of equity awards held by the CoreWeave Co-Founders pursuant to their equity exchange
rights which provide each Co-Founder with the right (but not obligation) to require CoreWeave to exchange, for shares of CoreWeave Class B common stock, any shares of
CoreWeave Class A common stock received by him upon the exercise or settlement of equity awards for shares of CoreWeave Class A common stock granted prior to
September 2024. Therefore, the CoreWeave Co-Founders, individually or together, will be able to significantly influence matters submitted to CoreWeave stockholders for
approval, including the election of directors, amendments of CoreWeave’s organizational documents and any merger, consolidation, sale of all or substantially all of
CoreWeave’s assets, or other major corporate transactions.

Additionally, future issuances of CoreWeave Class C common stock may further concentrate the voting power of CoreWeave Co-Founders by prolonging the duration of
their control and/or by giving them an opportunity to achieve liquidity without diminishing their voting power.

The interests of the CoreWeave Co-Founders, individually or together, may not coincide with the interests of the other holders of capital stock of CoreWeave, including
our stockholders who receive CoreWeave Class A common stock in the Merger. This concentration of ownership may harm the value of CoreWeave Class A common stock our
stockholders receive in the Merger by, among other things delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of CoreWeave, impeding a merger, consolidation, takeover or
other business combination involving CoreWeave, or causing CoreWeave to enter into transactions or agreements that are not in the best interests of all stockholders.

Under the Nasdaq Rules, a “controlled company”—a company of which more than 50% of the voting power for the election of its directors is held by an individual,
group or another company—may elect not to comply with certain corporate governance requirements, including the requirement that a majority of its directors be independent,
as defined in the Nasdaq Rules, and the requirement that its compensation and nominating and corporate governance committees consist entirely of independent directors.
CoreWeave may rely on the “controlled company” exemption under the Nasdaq Rules. As a result, a majority of the members of its board may not be independent directors and
its nominating and corporate governance and compensation committees may not consist entirely of independent directors. Accordingly, holders of CoreWeave common stock
may not have the same protections afforded to stockholders of companies that are subject to all of Nasdaq’s corporate governance requirements.
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Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit No. Exhibit Description

2.17% Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization by and among Power & Digital Infrastructure Acquisition Corp., XPDI Merger Sub Inc., XPDI
Merger Sub 2, LLC, and Core Scientific Holding Co. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No,
001-40046), filed with the SEC on July 21, 2021).

2.27F First Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization by and among Power & Digital Infrastructure Acquisition Corp., XPDI Merger
Sub Inc., XPDI Merger Sub 2, LLC, and Core Scientific Holding Co. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement
on Form S-4/A filed with the SEC on October 4, 2021).

2.31% Second Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization, by and among Power & Digital Infrastructure Acquisition Corp., XPDI
Merger Sub Inc., and Core Scientific Holding Co. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on December 30, 2021).

2.4 Confirmation Order, dated January 16, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC
on January 17, 2024).

2.5 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 7, 2025, by and among CoreWeave, Inc., Miami Merger Sub [, Inc. and Core Scientific, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to CoreWeave, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 7, 2025).

3.1 Fourth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Core Scientific, Inc. (incorporated by, reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 27, 2025).

3.2 Third Amended and Restated Bylaws of Core Scientific, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on May 27, 2025).

10.1# Core Scientific, Inc. Amended and Restated 2024 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 13, 2025).

31.1%* Certifications of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2% Certifications of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2% Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline
XBRL document.

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase.

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (the cover page XBRL tags)

* Filed herewith.
# Indicates management contract or compensatory plan.

TT Certain of the exhibits and schedules to these exhibits have been omitted in accordance with Regulation S-K Item 601(a)(5). The registrant agrees to furnish a
copy of all omitted exhibits and schedules to the SEC upon its request.
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1839341/000121390021037837/ea144540ex2-1_poweranddigi.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1839341/000121390021037837/ea144540ex2-1_poweranddigi.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1839341/000121390021037837/ea144540ex2-1_poweranddigi.htm
https://www.sec.gov/ix?doc=/Archives/edgar/data/1839341/000119312521290832/d172159ds4a.htm
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto
duly authorized.

CORE SCIENTIFIC, INC.
Date: March 2, 2026 By: /s/ Jim Nygaard
Jim Nygaard

Chief Financial Officer
( Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Adam Sullivan, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A of Core Scientific, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made,
in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(@

(b)

(©

(d

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(@

(b)

Date: March 2, 2026

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

/s/ Adam Sullivan

Adam Sullivan

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jim Nygaard, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A of Core Scientific, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made,
in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(@

(b)

(©

(d

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(@

(b)

Date: March 2, 2026

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

/s/ Jim Nygaard

Jim Nygaard
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Core Scientific Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q/A for the quarter ended June 30, 2025, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Adam Sullivan, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 2, 2026 By:  /s/ Adam Sullivan
Adam Sullivan
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Core Scientific Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q/A for the quarter ended June 30, 2025, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Jim Nygaard, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 2, 2026 By:  /s/ Jim Nygaard
Jim Nygaard
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)




